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7.

JASPER COUNTY ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORICAL SURVEY
Draft Survey Report

Name 6l Survey
Jasper County (South Carolina) Architectural and Histotical Survey, 1995-1996
Boundaries of Survey Area
Within the boundary of Jasper County, South Carolina as marked on the General
Highway Map of JFasper County, 1969, as revised October 1995, including all
incorporated areas.
Number of Properties Surveyed
350 properties surveyed, encompassing 407 individual sites.

Area Surveyed

654 square miles, according to 1969 General Highway Map of South Carolina as
revised in October 1995.

Surveyars

Principal Investigator: Eric C. Poplin
Surveyor and Historian:  Bruce . Harvey

Brockington agd Associates, Inc.
1051 Johmnie Dodds Bivd., Sujte F
Mt. Pleasant, SC 29464

Dates of Survey

Survey began with organizational meeting 15 October 1595, Principal field work was
conducted 1 February - 8 May 1996. Survey will be complete on 23 Septamber 1996.

Objectives

The objective of this survey was to identify all above ground histoncal resources in
Jasper County, including buildings, sites, objects, districts, and structures of historical
or architectural significance. The project also provided documestation of these
resources through historiczl research and fieldwork. This will allow Jaspar County
to set priorities for the protection and vse of its cultural resources as it plans for



future development within the county. It should also serve as an archival record of
the county’s above ground resources. The goal therefore has been to identify
resources that meet minimum criteria for inclusion in the National Register of
Historic Places [NRHP]. These criteria include recommendations that the resource
be at least fifty years of age, and that it retain it integrity. The goal has also been
to identify resources that represent broad aspects of Jasper County's historical
development.

The project is part of the Statewide Survey of Historic Places being carried cut by
the State Historic Preservation Office [SHPO]. The purpose of this statewide survey
13 to identify cuitural resources that are eligible for the NRHP, and to provide
information to the SHPO as it reviews the impact of projects with federal
components on NRHFP properties. Federal projects require environmental and
cultural review permits to proceed, which in turn requires review by the SHPQ. In
addition, some federal gramts for cultural resources in addition require a
determination of NRHP status. The information developed through the Jasper
County Architectural and Histotical Survey gives the SHPO 2 basis for making these
determinations.

Method of Survey

The Yasper County Architectural and Historjeal Survey began witk background
historical research for Jasper County and Beaufort District. This research consisted
of examining historic maps and plats at the South Carcliniana Library of the
University of South Carolina (Columbia), the South Carolina Historical Society
(Charleston), the South Carclina Department of Archives and History (Columbia),
the Jasper County Records Office (Ridgeland), and the Georgia Historical Society
{Savannah); a review of available manuscript material at the above institutions; a
teview of historical coilections at the Jasper County Public Library (Ridgeland), and
the Beavfort County Public Library (Beaufort); interviews of peopie knowiedgeable
with the history and resources of Fasper County; and a review of secondary literature
pettaining to Jasper County, the low country, and South Carolina. The sources
useful in conducting this research can be found in the bibliography, Item 10 in this
T&poTt.

This background research led to a draft historical overview that identified important
themes and patterns of historical development. This averview served twe important
ends. First, it provided an introduction to Jasper County’s history for the general
reader. Second, it demonstrated the context within which to ideatify and assess the
significance of Jasper County’s standing structures; eligibility for the NRHP rests to
a latge extent upon the relations between a historic property and its historical
context. This histarical context also allowed the field surveyor to predict and be alest
to the presence of certain types of historic properties and understand their
significance in the field.



The field survey of properties began once the historical overview had been
developed. The Survey Manuai for the South Carolina Statewide Survey of Historic
Places recommends conducting a reconnaissance survey before an intensive survey
when possible. Brockington and Associates, Inc,, with agreement from the SHPO,
conducted the reconnaissance survey concurrently with the intensive survey. The
intensive survey of Jasper County involved traveling all public roads in the county.
South Carolina Statewide Survey Site Forms were completed for properties which
appeared to be constructed before 1945 and which appeared to have sufficient
integnity and condition. These survey criteria were flexible; a determination was
made in the field to survey properties which appeared to be built after 1945 or if
their integrity or condition were poor if they represented important themes in the
coutty and if those themes were poorly represented in the county. Examples of
these themes included the timber industry, nineteenth century domestic and
agricultural buildings, and nineteenth century earthenworks.

Much of the county’s land is held in very large tracis, either by plantations or by
lomber companies. Permission was required to enter these private lands, apd
Brockington and Associates, Inc., attempted through letters and telephone contact
to secure permission to survey historic properties on these tracts. Most owners were
very cooperative both in granting access to the properties and in providing historical
information; the few tracts that have not been surveyed have been identified as
survey gaps in Item 13 of this report and have been identified on the maps that
accompany this report.

Additional background research on individual properties was conducted during and
after the fieldwork. Preliminary public meetings provided a base for identifying
properties, while attempts were made during the fieldwork to tatk to owners or
residents regarding the property. Residents of different locai areas of the ¢ounty
were interviewed te provide further informaticn on those areas. In addition, research
was conducted for selected properties in the Jasper County Tax Assessors” Office and
the Jasper County Public Records Office, both in Ridgelagd. This information has
been used to supplement the historical ove rview and to provide historical background
informaticn on the Site Forms.



9, Historical Background

Intraduction

Tasper County is a relative newcomer in South Carolina. While all places will show
a balance of old and pew, this mix seems particularly strong in Jasper County. Formed in
1912, it is one of the most recent of South Carclina’s counties. The southern part of South
Carolina, however, saw the earliest European attempts at settlement of any part of the state.
Encrmous social, economic, and political changes have swept over the [and; these along with
military invasions bave had a powerful impact on the county’s lardscape and architecture
over the past several cemtures. Much of the land from the earliest sighteenth century
settlements to the present has been highly concentrated, held by owmers who used the land
and swamps for planting, pasture, or recreation. This settlement pattern required few
bulldipgs. As much as historic buildings, one locks for modifications to the landscape,
including modern roads that have early predecessors, rice works, and Civil War batteries.

Political changes have also affected the shape of Jasper County. English settiement
alang the Scuth Carolina cozst began at Charleston in 1670. What is now Jasper County
was not within a county in 1682. At that time, it was probably administered first from
Colleton County and then from Granville {Figure 1). There were no county seats in the
area, and all official records were kept in Charieston. Between 1706 and 1767, the coastal
portions of South Carolina were subdivided into parishes, centered around Anglican
cBurches. Jasper County now occupies most of 5t. Peter’s Parisk, along with parts of St
Luke’s and Prince William's Parishes (Figure 2).

The colony of South Carclina was reorganized into circuit court districts in 1769
(Figure 3). Jasper County was then within Beanfort District, where court was held at
different times ia the towns of Gillisoaville, Coosawhatchie, and Beavfort. What is now
Tasper County remained m Beaufort District and County from then until 1878, when parts
of what are now Jasper County became part of Hampton County. Finally, Jasper County
emerged in 1912 from parts of Hampton and Beaufort Counties (Figure 4). For the sake
of consistency and ease of comprehension, the designation "Jasper County™ will be used
throughout this report to jndicate the present boundaries of the county even io the eras
before the county itself came into existence.

Amid all of these changes wrought by wars, politics, and envircument, the county's
few towns provided the most important source of coptinuity. New towns emerged
throughout the nineteenth century, while the oid ones faded and often disappeared. Small
town centers, often little more than a crossroads with a store and a few other buildings and
bouses, continue to provide social centers for au intensely rural county much as they did in
the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. While no eighteeath century buildings remain in
the villages and hamlets in the County and cnly a few from the nineteenth century remain,
pew ¢onstruction continued to focus on these centers into the twenticth century.
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Figure 1. Proprietary Counties of South Carolinz in 1682 (taken from Records of the
Secretary of the Province of South Carolina 1692-1721),
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Figure 2.
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The southemn low country, and South Carolina in particular, has beer the subject of
several scholarly studies in the past eight years, and has made the task of writing this
historical overview an even more rewarding process. Lawrence Rowland, a historian
teaching at the University of South Carolina at Beaufort, in his dissertation and in
subsequent articles has brought to light valuable information and interpretations regarding
Beaufort District and Jasper County in the eightéenth and niceteenth centuries.' Peter
Coclanis, a historian at the Untversity of North Carolina, has written a powerful bock about
the influential role of international markets on the early and continuing formation of the
South Carolina low country.? Joyce Chaplin, a historian at Vanderbilt University in
Nashwille, has written an extremely intelligent study on the development of modern thought
in the southern low country during the late eighteenth and early nineteenth cenruries. She
combines technological improvements, intellectual currents regarding modern economic and
agricultural thought, and changes in the land to understand the changing pattems of living -
and thinking in the region.” Most recently, Stephanie McCurry has written a very valuable
study of yeoman culture in St. Peter's Parish in the early and middle nineteenth century.
McCurry, a professor of history at the University of California at San Diego, made an
exhaustive egamination of the sources pertaining to 51. Peter's Parish and has described the

relations among poor white, yeoman, and planter families in the decades leading up to the
Civil War.}

The following overview of JTasper County’s history draws on these and other works
to show the county’s patterns of development. The purpose of this overview is to provide
a context for nnderstanding the historical resources that still exist, and to understand why
other types of historical resources no longer exist. Additional information on properties
referred to in this overview by site number may be found on the South Carolina Statewide
Survey Site Forms that were produced for this project. These forms contain property
descriptions, photographs, and additional historical information when it was available.

‘Lawreace 5. Rowland, "Alone on the River: The Rise and Fall of the Savannah River Rice
Flantations of St. Peter's Parish, South Caroling.” The South Carolina Historical Magazine 86 (April 1985);
Rowland, "Eighteenth Ceatury Beaufort: A Study of South Carolina’s Southern Parishes to 1800" (Ph.D. diss.,
University of South Carolina, 1978),

*Peter A. Codlanis, Shadow of @ Dream: Economic Life and Death in the South Carofing Low Couniry
1670-1920 {INY: Oxford University Press, 1989).

Yloyce E Chaplin, An Anwious Pursuiz: Agricudtural Innovation and Modermity in the Lower South, 1730-
1815 (Chapel Hil: Universiy of North Carclina Press, 1933).

‘Stepbanie McCurry, Masters af Small Worlds: Yeoman Households, Gender Relations, & the Political
Cuitnre of the Aniebellurn South Carolina Low Country (NY: Oxford University Press, 1995).

9



The Protohisioric Era and Early European Settfement

Native Americar groups had occupied the area between the Pocotaligo and Savannah
Rivers for ages before the arrival of Europeans in the early sixteenth century. While the
Yamasee are the most well-konown tribe as a result of a war bearing their name in the early
eighteenth century, other groups bad also been in the area. The most important of these
was the Cusabo, a branch of the mighty Muskhogean linguistic family. They were the first
group that the arriving Spanish encountered in the sixteenth century, and clearly were the
dominant group in the area at the time of contact. At that time, the Yamasce were more
closely associated with lands in Georgia. The Yamasee moved north of the Savannah River
in 1687, and lived more or less in alliance with the British colonists in the area ungl the
autbreak of war in 1715.°

Spanish exploration on the South Carolina coast began as early as 1514, and a
landing party went ashore in the Port Royal vicinity (now Beaufort Connty) in 1520 at a spot -
they named Santa Flena.® From that time on, the Port Royal area was of great interest to
both the Spanish and the French. This was not a permanent settlement, however. The first
Spanish attempt at a permanent settiement on the Scuth Carolina coast, in 1526, was San
Miguel de Gualdape. It appears to have been in the Winyah Bay area, near Georgetawn,’
The French, under Jean Ribault, zlso attempted to establish a settlement on the South
Carolina coast in 1562, This settlement, on Parris Island, was called Charlesfort, and was
also unsuccessful,

French presence on the South Carolina coast drew the Spanish back, to protect their
original interest. Spanish forces atfacked Charlesfort and established their own settlement
of Santa Elena in 1566. Recent archaeclogical evidence suggests that the Spanish built their
new settlement of Sarta Elena on top of the destroyed French settlement. Local Indians,
the Cusabo, were less than friendly, but despite numerous attacks and several burnings, the
Spanish settlers did not abandon Santa Elena until 1587* The Spanish maintained their
interest in Santa Elena as part of a series of missions on the sea islands from St. Avugustine,
Florida, through Georgia, and into South Carolima; Spamish friars were at "5t. Ellens" when

Iohu R. Swanton, The Indian Tribes of North America; Bureau of American Ethnology Bulletin 145
{(Washingion, D.C.. Smithsonian Institmion Press, [952); 94-95, I3,

*Paul E. Hoffirag, "Legend, Religious [dealism, and Colonies: The Point of Santa Elena in History,
1552-1556," The South Carolinae Hiioncal Muagazine 84 (April 1933): 64; Rowland, "Aloae oo the River,” 1.

"Paul Quatilebaum, The Land Called Chicors, the Carofinas nnder Sponish Rule with French Intnusions,
[520-1670 (Gaicesville: The Universily of Florida Press, 1995}

*Eugene Lyon, “Santz Elena: A Bref History of the Colony, 1566-1587," South Carcling Instimte of
Archaeology and Anthropology Research Mantscripe Serfes 193; Rowland, "Eighteeath Century Beaufort,” 25-57.

10



William Hilton visited the area in 1663.° During its twenty year existence, Santa Elena
served as the base for the first serious explorations into the interior of the state.

English Coloniaf Occupation

Settlers in the Carolina low country were caught up in and integral parts of wide-
ranging disputes and rivalries among the English, Spanish, Indians, and African slaves.
These disputes and rivalries encompassed pearly all of the low country, an area that spanned
hundreds of miles from Georgetown, South Carolina, to northem Flonida. Jasper County’s
early history needs to be seen in this regional context. The Spanish had routed the French
in East Florida in 1565, and established a settlement at what is now St. Augustine. This
Spanish presence was a continual threat to the English settlers, particularly after the 1670s,
when Spain Jearned of the Charles Towne settlement.

King Charles I1 of England disregarded Spain’s claim to the region, and in 1662 he
granted Carolina to the Lords Proprietors. The next year, a group of Barbados planters
kired William Hilton to explore the acquisition. He spent over a month in the waters of
both Port Royal and St. Ellens, leaving with a high opmion of the area’s poteptial as a
colony. Prompted by the account of tall pines and good soils, a small coleny set out for Port
Royal. Tales of hostile Indians convinced them to move farther north, though, where they
founded Charles Towne in 1670 One of the first orders of business for the settlers was
initiating trade with the Indians as a way of ensuring both economic and physical survival."

Seottish dissenters establisbed Stuart’s Town on Port Royal Island in 1684; it was
short-lived and was destroyed by the Spanish in 1686. A series of large land grants
beginning in 1698 signalled a renewed interest in settling Port Royal.” When the town of
Reaufort was chartered in 1711, the Yamasee bad ten villages in what are now Beaufort and
Jasper Counties. Angered by mistreatment from traders, the Indians attacked in the
Yamasee War in 1715 but did not succeed in dislodging the English.” At the time, the war
was blamed on Spanish influence from Florida, but a more likely cause was the Epglish

James W. Covington, "Stuart’s Town: The Yemassee Indians and Spanish Florida,” The Florida
Anthropatogise 21 (1978):8-9, Williom Hilton, A Relation of a Discovery Lately Made on the Coast of Florida
{1564; reprmt ed., privately priated, 1995},

®Virginiz C. Holmgren, Hifton Head: A Sea Island Chronicle {Hilton Head island: Hilton Head Island
Publishing, 1959), 39.

"Covington, 9.
“Holmgren, 42.

“Covingion, 12.

11



traders’ practice of seizing Indian women and children, holding them as slaves to meet
Indian debts.

These defense considerations made the residents of Jasper County eager to see the
development of the Georgia colony. Twenty trustees, under the leadership of James
Oglethorpe and Lord John Percival, secured a charter from King George in 1732. Savannah
was settled the next year by pioneers from a number of ethnic backgrounds who were
recruited by the colony’s sponsors, including New Englanders, Scotsmen, and Germans,
aloag with settlers from small English towns. The colony was initially designed to serve two
ends: as a philanthropic haven for social outcasts, and as a buffer between Spanish Florida
and English Carclina. While the philanthropic ends were not met, and while settlement
grew slowly, Savannah continued to constitute a significant draw for other settlers. Relations
between the new colony and the Carclina settlers, however, was uneven. The Savannah
River was crucial to the economic survival of the colonies, and disputes simmered during
the eighteenth century as to the boundary of the two colonies. At the same time, many
Greorgia settlers, including James Oglethorpe, purchased tracts of river land on the Carclina
side. Despite Savanzah’s proximity, however, most of the Carolina settlers continued to
lock to distant Charleston for their trade connections. This trend continues to the present.

These early settlements grew slowly, and despite its geographic spread, the low
country of South Carolina contained only around 5,000 European and African-American
inhabitants in 1700." The early economy centered around naval stores, beef and pork
production, and trade with the Native American populations, particulatly io deerskins. By
the end of the seventeenth century, however, the colonists had begun to experiment with
rice cultivation. The first attempts at growing rice in the low country were on dry upland
soil. By the late seventeenth and early eighteenth centuries, however, attention turned to
the inland swamps. This new technology required constructing elaborate drainage ditches
and canals, and making other vast modifications to the terrain.” Jasper County saw limited
amounts of this development in the early eighteenth century, and the bulk of rice agriculture
began io the wid and late eighteenth century.™ The conditions of the immediate tidal area
proved vaiuable, and production for export increased rapidly. Rice was complemented by
the introduction of indigo as a cash ¢crop in the 174Qs. Indigo became one of South
Carolina's principal exports during the eighteenth century. It died quickly as a staple crop,
bowever, after the Revolutionary War. Rice regained its supremacy in the low country, and
formed the basis of Jasper County's agricultural growth through the nineteenth century.

“Charles F. Kovacik and John J. Winberry, South Carolina: The Making of ¢ Landscape {Boulder:
Westview Press, Inc, 1987; reprint, Columbia: University of South Carolna Press, 1989), 77.

“Peter A. Coclanis, Introduction to Seed from Madagascar, by Duncan Clinch Heyward (Chapel Hil:
University of Morth Carolina Press, 1937 ceprnt, Columbia: University of South Carolina, 1993), xii-xv.

¥Rowland, "Alone on the River,” 123126
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Extensive agricultural development of the Savannah River in St. Peter's Parish began
in the 1750s when Robert Wright, and his sons Charles and Jermyn, began turning their
8,000 acres along the lower Savannah River into rice plantations.  Henry Laurens took
over 2.000 of these acres in 1768, and spent even more money and time o create rice fields.
Despite Laurens’ efforts, the area did not develop rapidly in the eighteenth century.
Absentee owners led to mismanagement, while the Revolutionary War, particularly the fall
of Savannah in 1778, various invasions of the low country in 1779, and the fall of Charleston
in 1780, along with bitter partisan fighting, all stood in the way of developing the area’s
economy.”

This pattern of economic development, in which families with vast wealth controlled
enormous tracts of tand along river frontage, did not lend itself to the formation of towns.
Robert Johnson, the first royal governor of the colony in the 1730s after the overthrow of
the Lords Proprietors in 1719-1720, sought to ¢hange this situation by creating a series of
townships throughout the back country. He encouraged settlement in these areas through -
an extension of the headright system, which apportioned fifty acres to every settler.

Purtysburgh, founded in the 1730s, was the principal township io Jasper County.
Jean Pierre Purry, of Neufchatel, Switzerland, had recommended setiling a group of poor
Swiss Protestants in the 1720s. Johnson, after hie assumed his duties as Royal Governor in
1730, agreed to Purry's recommendation. Purry selected his site along the Savannab River
in 1731, and the settlers began amiving in late 1732 (Figure 5). The settlement never
became a great success, though, nor did it gain a strong foothold as 2 cohesive community.
The Savannak River was not easily navigable at that spot, and it was not 2 healthful place.
Many of the settlers quickly pulled up stakes and moved to other parts of South Carolina
and Georgia.'® The village of Purrysburgh remained, however, well into the nineteenth
century. Plats in the South Carolina Department of Archives and History frem the mid-
pineteenth century indicate a Main Street and various houses or settlements. Large,
subterranean brick-lined wells near Purrysburgh (site 216 0422} also suggest the level of
settlement in the area in the early nineteenth century.”

Thawland, "Alone on the River,” 125-127.

PHepry AM. Smith, Cities and Towns of Early South Carolina, wpl, 2 (Spartanburg: The Reprzt
Company, Publishers, 1988}, 115-147.

N records found so far indicated the age or original porpose of these brick-lned welis. They are
mentioned in Cidll War letters from 1862, but how old they were at that point is unknown. They also do not
show up on available plats at the SCDAH. It seems likely that they served as wells. The lack of mortar
pointing or facing suggests 1hat they may have been degigned to allow groundwater scepage, rather than to
serve for the storage of water collected elsewhere. One source of historical information cn wells, first
published in 1916, suggested that "Ly brick curb and casing utilzes all seeps. Filters oul most sediment.
Dioes not atlow small animals 10 enter. [nvolves littlle money outlay for labor. Polluting matter enters readily,
and the well is never safe near sources of conlamination.” Alired Douglas Flinn, Robert $purr Weston, and
Chinton Lathrop Bogert, comps., aterworks Handbook of Design, Construction, and Uperntian {NY: McGraw
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Purrysburgh remained the only town of note in the area into the late eighteenth
century, and its church remained the parish church for St. Peter's Parish through the
century.® There were few other towns in St. Peter’s or St. Luke’s Parishes. While it served
as a stopping point for coaches traveling between Charleston and Savannah, and as a hub
of such commercial activity as existed, it was not a major center. Other centers of
population began to arise after the Revolutionary War in the late eighteenth century.
Captain Johr Graham led a move to create a summer resort for pianters, after the War, and
created Grahamville. Switzerland was comprised of former residents of Purrysburgh, while
Hardeeville also housed rice planters during the summer months.”

As the population of the low country grew, though, so did the need for social and
political representation. St. Helena Parish had been established in 1712. Prince William,
between the Combahee and Cocsawhatchie Rivers, and Si. Peter’s, hugging the eastern
shore of the Savamnah River, were created in 1745 and 1747 respectively. The intervening
area became St. Luke’s Parish in 1767. The colonial act creating St. Luke’s Parish was
disallowed for political reasons by the British government, and as a result, the parish was
never part of the Anglican Church’s establishment in South Carolina. In fact, the Baptist
church at the Eubaws was the first local house of worship when organized in 1745.% St
Luke’s Parish did become an electoral district in 1730,

Transportation was a problem in the area from the earliest years. Only a few roads
crossed what is now Jasper County. The village of Coosawhatchie arose in the eighteenth
century as the spot where the main stage road from Charleston to Savannah crossed the
Coosawhatchie River. A 1775 map, for example, indicates the present site of Coosawhatchie
only as a bridge. The Savannah River, meanwhile, proved as much a hindrance as an asset.
Throughout the colonial eras, ferries remained the only way 1o Cross the river. Purrysburgh,
fifteen miles above Savannah, retained its ferry through the eighteenth century. Indeed, its
ferry seemed the sole reason for its existence late in the century. A second ferry opened
in 1762, the Rochester ferry, which was closer to Savannah. The King's Highway from
Charleston to Savannah conpmected with the Rochester ferry, and effectively drove
Purrysburgh out of existence; this road remains as site 216 0414, County Road [CR] 169.%
The Rochester Ferry and its approach, altematively called the Union Causeway ot Screven's

®Smith, 135.

“3race Fox Perry, Moving Finger of Jasper ([Ridgeland]: Jasper County Confederate Centennial
Comumission, n.d.), 3-66. Ms. Perry gives very valuable information oo the ¢reation of the towas i a series
of short essays. She provides likle explicit documentation of her sources in her boak, which Is frustrating, but
used cavtiously it is a very valuable work and the oaly cne which provides an overview of Jasper County.

THelen Mettles, *Eubaw Baptist Church," in A History of Savannah River Baprist Association. ed.
Michael Cresswell (Ridgeland: Savannah River Baptist Association, 1977}, 35.

PRowland, "Alone on the River,” 126 and 126a.
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Ferry, crossed the river just below Savarnah (site 301 0022.01). The Union Causeway and
the Charleston Road are among the few eighteenth century survivors in Jasper County, and
remain unimproved roads. A third ferry served the planters further vp river, at Two Sisters
which was just east of Robertville. A portion of the road from Robertville to the Two
Sisters Ferry remains as site 440 0387.04.

The rice plantations in Jasper County could grow only with the advent of slavery. A
1755 magazine estimated that South Carolina residents had imported over 32,000 siaves by
17232* The growing population increased pressure for territorial expansion, which was
compounded by the growing black majority i the low country. South Carolina had a slave
majority by 1710, but slavery did not take a firm hold along the Savaunah River in Jasper
County untif after the 1760s and 1770s when Chatles and Jermyn Wright and Heary Laurens
began developing their rice fields along the Savannab.™

The Revolution and s Aftermaih

The colonies declared their independence from Britain in 1776, following several
vears of increasing tension due to unfair taxation and trade restrictions imposed on them
by the British Parliament. South Carolinians were divided during the war, although most
citizens ultimately supported the American cause. Those individuals who remained loyal to
the British government tended to reside in Charleston or in certain enclaves within the
interior of the province. The division of political sentiment in the Beaufort region was
especially strong. Many residents of the town of Beaufort and St. Helena Parish were
Toyalists, while their neighbors in $t. Euke's Parish were strong advocates of independence.
This was particulazly true of the population on Hilton Head Island. The divisions between
Joyalist and patriot were both geographical 2nd generational. Older members of respected
colonizl families like the Bulls, Barnwells, and Heywards, for example, remained loyal to the
king, while their sons became active rebels.®

Britain'’s Royal Navy attacked Fort Suilivan (later renamed Fort Moultrie) near
Charleston iz 1776. The British fatled to take the fort, and the defeat boistered the morale
of American revolutionaries throughout the colonies. The British military then turned their
attention northward. They returned in 1778, however, besieging and capturing Savannah
late in December. Two months later (February 1779}, British troops attacked Port Royal

“Peter Wood, Black Majority: Negroes in Colonial South Carolina frorm 1670 through the Siono Rebellion
{New York: W.W. Norton & Company, Inc., 1975}

HRowland, "Alone on the River," 125-127.
*[ awrence §. Rowland, "A Brief Overview of the History of St. Luke’s Parish from!685 ta 1865," in

Biuffton Hisiorical Preservadion Seciety Report 19921993 (Bluffton, SC: Bluffion Historical Prese rvation Society,
Inc., 1933,
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Isiand and destroyed a number of plantations on Hilton Head Island en route. When
British forces uvpder Gen_ Augustine Prevost withdrew to Savannah after attempting to take
Charleston that same year, the rear guard of his army occupied Beaufort.”

A major British expeditionary force landed on Seabrook Island during the winter of
1780, and then marched north and east to invade Charleston from its landward approaches.™
The rebel South Carclinians were not prepated for an attack from this direction. They were
besieged and entirely captured in May after offering a weak defense. Charieston
subsequently became a base of operations for British campaigns into the interior of South
Carolina, Georgia, and North Carolina. However, the combined American and French
victory over Lord Cornwallis at Yorktown in 1782 effectively destroyed Bntish military
activity jn the south and forced a negotiated peace The 13 colonies gained full
independence, and the English evacuated Charleston in December 1782.

The economy of the region underwent a fundamental change after the Revolution. -
The 1790s witnessed the introduction of Sea Island cotion and the advent of the cotton gin
on the nearby Savannah River. The cultivation of cotton spread, and it became the most
lucrative agriculture commodity in the region. Even so, rice cuiture in the area flourished
during the first half of the 1800s, particularly along the Savagnah River.

Rice had grown quickly during the eighteenth century in its importance to the low
country's economy. From 250,000 pounds in 1699, the colony exported 66,000,000 pounds
in 1770.° The impact on the land was dramatic. By the late eighteenth century, rice
cultivation was based on another new technology, which relied on the power of tides to raise
river levels; this inundated crops with fresh water that would kill off the weeds. In order
to do this, the process of radically altering the landscape was expanded as lands along the
tidaj rivers were drained, canals were built, and felds were surroynded by levies to control
their access to the water.? Duncan Clinch Heyward, the fifth generation of his family to
plant rice in the low country, gave 2 useful description of the process of clearing the swamps
in his 1937 memeirs:

There were many large white gum, cedar, and cypress trees, and the dark alluvial soil
was so soft that one could scarcely walk any distance upon it. TFo avoid sinking he
would have ta step from one root to another, or trust his weight to some treachercus

Tbid: Rowland, "Eighteenth Ceptury Beaufort.”

¥Henry Lumpkin, From Savennah o Yorkiown: The American Revolution in the South (Columbia:
University of South Carolina Press, 1981), 42-46.

Tbid.
cCurry, 32,

Msee Chaplin, 227-276.

17



‘ad@papny uyer jo uoneueld Iamy yruseses a1 Jummoys 1efd g5L1 W L ETUER |

iy

T
NEYE m_?

k

E P

N

AMIRDY I 3001F 10D

13



tussock. Everywhere his progress was impeded by dense undergrowth, and his
clothes and flesh tomn by brars... The first step in reclaiming the swamp lands was to
build a bank along the edge of the river, with both ends joined to strips of highiand
where they approached the river's edge, and through the bank to place trunks, similar
to those used in the inland swamps, for the water to pass through. When the bank
had been built and the trunks installed, the digging of the canals and ditches in the
swamp followed. Then the trees and undergrowth had to be removed, the greatest
undertaking of all. The trees were cut down and bummed, but their stumps were
never compietely removed *

The result was a distinctive landscape, which maps from the late eighteenth and nineteenth
centuries capture. A 1796 plat of Jobn Rutledge’s rice plantation along the Savannah Back
River, for example, shows rice fields riven by a series of interconnecting canals (Figure &).
The series of buildings, including rice machines, slave cabins, apd the maim house, seem
minor features in the midst of this agricultural complex. The extent and durability of the
impact of rice coiture was shown in an 1880 coastal survey map of the lower Savanmnah
River. At atime when rice was declining in importance, the vast regional petwork of canals
and levees was stiil plainly visible.

The buildings construcied in conjunction with rice colture in Jasper County have
apparently all disappeared. Many of the engineering projects, however, have remained in
surprisingly iotact condition. These are most often found oo the twentieth century
plantations where old rice fields have never been plowed under; site 428 0271 near Hazzard
Creek offers the clearest example of intact upland rice fields, where approximately six fields
can be discerned and where the intricate network of canals and levees are still plainily visible
amid the trees. Likewise, site 216 0273 near Hardeeville retains arrow-straight rice dams
extending back into the wooads. Site 301 0022 contains the clearest remaining example of
tidal rice felds.

Indigo agriculture declined drastically in the 17%0s, with the removal of the English
bounty and English markets. Both indigo and rice were labor-intensive, and laid the basis
for South Carclina’s dependence on African slave labor, much as tobacco had done in the
Virginia colony. Cotton became important after the Revolution, particularly the long staple
variety on the sea islands and other coastal areas. Rice and cotton agriculture, in a
slave-based plantation system, dominated the region until the Civil War,

The Antzbelfum Era

According to the first census of the United States, in 1790, the population of
Beaufort District {encompassing modern-day Beaufort, Hampton, and Jasper Counties) was

*Heyward, 13-20.
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18,753, of which 14,236 (75.9 per cent) were slaves. There were 4,364 whites (23.3 per cent),
and 153 other free persons (0.8 per cent) in the district.

The traditional image of the Scuth Carolina low country focuses on the region's
planters. It was an aristocratic land, according to the story, one in which a few families
controlied vast plantattons that were dedicated to rice and cotton, and who were reliant
upon vast gangs of black slaves. Names like Rutledge, Huger, Heyward, and Guerard
cogtinue to resonate in the low country. The historian Peter Coclanis recently sought to
define what distinguished this low country aristecracy. No single factor, he argued, could
suffice for a definition, "not wealth or family or character or ackievement.” Lineage, and
wealth and slaves, were important parts, but the overnding possessions of the low country
aristocracy were "commanding authority” and connection to a narrow band of kinship ties.
In general, he concluded, "the low-country aristocracy comprised wealthy planters of good
stock with many slaves.'®

The agricultural cutput of Beaufort District, and St. Peter’s Parish in particular, was
immense. By 1860, 18 major plantations lined the Savannzh River in South Carolina,
controlling nearly 12,000 acres of prime swamp land and high ground, worked by over 2,500
slaves.® Growth in the area continued slowly until the 1820s, when the tidal culture of rice
matured. The Pansh was the second most productive rice growing area in the state on the
eve of the Civil War, behind only the Georgetown area, while Beaufort District in 1849
produced more rice than any other area in North America. Tremendously wealthy and
powerful men owned these great nice plantations, such as Paniel Huger, John and James
Screven, James Hamilten, Jr., who marned into the powerful Heyward family, Langdon
Cheves, and Charles Manigault (Figure 7). Close bonds of family and friendship linked
many of these planters, and brought so many of them to invest in lands in St. Peter's
Parish.*

The aristocratic, planter-oriented aspect of Jasper County was obvious, and clearly
black slaves were an overwhelming presence. The area that is now Jasper County, however,
also included a substantial yeoman element throughout the antebelium era. Indeed, at titnes
an outright majority of the area's free residents were members of yeoman families.™

Yeomen were a surprisingly strong presence in the Parish, and influenced its
development through their numbers and votes if not through social prestige or economic
might. The characteristics of yeoman status as outlined by Stephanie McCurry in her recent

*Coclanis, “Intraduection,” xx.
Rowland, "Alone oo the River,” 123
Mowland, *Alone on the River” 1302138,

“McCurry, 54-55.
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book give a clue to their influence. Yeomen were independent farmers who owned their
own land, and who worked the land themselves with their families. The ownership of slaves,
or lack thereof, apparently was not a determining factor; a farm household with as many as
nine slaves would still require that family members work in the fields. Likewise, while there
is no true definition of the amount of land owned by yeomen, McCurry has suggested 150
acres of improved farm land as the upper reaches of the yeomanry. In 1830, just over half
of all farms in St. Peter's Parish contained fewer than 150 improved acres, while in 1860 just
under half of the farms in the Parish were under 150 acres. Despite their being nearly a
majority in 1850 as in 1860, however, these yeomen owned culy 8.7 per cent of the slaves
in the Parsh.

All families in St. Peter’s Parish, whether planter, yeoman, or slave, were
characterized by an intense devotion to and reliance on agriculture, as fully 9C per cent of
the jnhabitants were tied directly to farming. Moreover, land ownership was surprisingly
broad-based in this aristocratic tegion; 75 per ¢ent of household heads owned their own
land, while 30 per cent of farm operators owned their own land. This egalitarianism in land-
ownership, however, was matched by an incgalitarian distribution of land, as the Parish’s
wealthiest 10 per cent of real property owners controlled 70 per ceat of the Parnish’s real
wealth in the 1820s; this concentration tended 1o increase throughout the antebellum era.™
The wide range of farm ownership, however, nearly institutionalized the dearth of towns in
the area; one study has concluded that Soutk Carolina had no interior towns of greater than
500 occupants before the Civil War.™

It is expected that these yeomen families would have lived in relatively simple
wooden houses. Dogtrot houses, in which two rooms and an oper passageway in between
were covered with a single roof, were very common in the years before the Civil War; a
wmodified form of a dogtrot has been identified at site 428 0328.02 southeast of Ridgeland.
Built of logs, it retains the open passageway between two square rooms, each approximately
12 feet square. It has now had additicos to the back 10 form cooking and dining areas, but
the front section gives an idea of the scope. One story I-cottages and two story I-houses
would also have been likely houses for antebellum yeomen. These were houses which had
balanced facades:; a central door was surrounded by either one or two rooms on cach side.
The house, however, was only one room deep. A later, and more elaborate [-house can still
be seen in Hardeeville {site 216 0216). It is a full two stories, and has been added on to,
but the proportions can stll clearly be seen in the central block,

Few if any of these houses remain in unchanged form from the antebellum ¢ra. The
main house at site 068 0253 near Gillisonville, for examgle, has an antebellum core, but the
exterior was extensively altered and enlarged in the twentieth century. {Other houses
suffered from the continual movement of yeomen farmers to more fertile agricultural lands

TMeCurry, 74-75.

¥Codanis, Shedow of a Dream, 146.
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in the western states such as Alabama, Mississippi, and Texas. Their houses, left behind,
soon deteriorated in the damp climate of the Carolina low country. Other houses were
destroyed in the wake of General Sherman's army in 1365, while stili others were abandoned
in the changing patterns of land ownership in the jate nipeteenth century. Finally, the new
large landowners of the twentisth century, the timber companies and plantation owners,
often removed the oid buildings after acquiring the land in the early twentieth century,
either to make way for tree plantings or to eradicate unsightly, abandoned, and deteriorating
houses.

Both planters and yeomen werc affected by local, regicnal, and even international
market forces, For most residents of 3t. Feter's and $t. Luke's parishes, the market was
most directly represented by the few stores in the area. These stores were places where the
informal trade networks centered. The store owners were also purveyors of relatively low
amounts of agricultural credit; the small crops of cotton which yeomen farmers tended to
grow often went to securing credit for the coming year. Stores were also the principal social
autlet for the male heads of the yeoman households; they were the site of political culture
for the area, and served as the local taverns along with sites for militia musters. Fot reasons
similar to those mentioned above regarding houses, these stores tended pot to survive into
the present.

The Mills Atlas of 1825 indicates only one store in the area (Figure 8). Hazzard’s
Store was approximately 3 miles southeast of Grahamville; the approsimate modern location
is the intersection of US 278 and CR 174, Two taverns and a mill are identified oo the map
as well. Hogg's Tavern was located approximately on US 278 south of O1d House, near the
Whig Swamp, while an unnamed tavern was on the King's Highway (site 216 0414), now CR
169, sauthwest of the Great Swamp bridge. Porcher’s Mill may have been on what is now
US 321, near Tiliman. Hazzard’s store apparently existed in 1873 when another county map
was drawn, thongh it bad moved porth of the road from Grahamvilie; none of the others
were indicated oo the map. Nope of these buildings survives today.

The rise of evangelical religion in St. Peter's Parish served as a social as well as a
political outlet. The "Second Great Awakening" of the early nineteenth century first
appeared in St. Peter's Parish in 1803, when a revival at Black Swamp Baptist Church
attracted over 1,000 faithful or cutious people. The Parish was relatively quict for the next
soveral decades, until Daniel Baker, a Savapnah revivalist, conducted large revivals in
Gillisouville 2nd Grahamville in 1831. The low country became a heavily evangelical area
during the 1830s and 1840s, particularly among the yeomen. While many planters took part
in this general revivai, the majority of placters remained with the Episcopal Church; only
one-third of the major planters (defined as 100 siaves or more) were among the ihree
principal evangelical desominations: Methodist, Presbyterian, and Baptist.”” The Episcopal

"McCurry, 165,
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Chureh of the Holy Trinity in Grahamviile (site 428 D425}, for example, was built in the
18505 when that town served as a haven for plantation owners.”

Several churches in what is now Jasper County came into being during the
antebellum years. Few have survived intact. Gillisonville Baptist Church {site 109 0001) is
one that has. Built in 1845, it is a Greek Revival Church with oversized columns. I, like
Holy Trinity Church in Grahamville, survived the Civil War as a Federally-occupied
building.®* The Rebertville Baptist Church {site 400 0002} was built in 1848, though it was
moved from Gillisonville in 1871. Other prominent churches of the time included Beech
Branch Baptist Church in Gillisonville, and Black Swamyp Church in Robertville.

What is now Jasper County was the geographical as well as political center of
Beanfort District. The town of Beaufort was located at a great distance from many of the
residents of the District, and the difficulty in getting to the courthouse generated vorest.
The petitioners succeeded in having the Beanfort District’s courthouse removed from
Beaufort to Coosawhatchie in 1788, and the South Carolinz House of Representatives
provided for building a courthouse and jail near the Coosawhatchie bridge. In 1790, the
District court finally met in its gew setting.® James Louis Pettigru, the famous Unionist
from South Carolina, began his law career in Coosawhatchie in 1813, where he stayed until
he returned to Charleston in 1819.%

Coosawhatchie proved to be a disastrous choice as county seat; it apparently was as
disease-ridden a place as the nineteenth century low country had to offer. Citizens began
to petition the General Assembly for a new county seat in 1836. Coosawhatchie, the
petidoners claimed, "is so fatally sickly that not a siogle white person resides there in the
sumimer season except the post master of the place and his deputy.” As a result, they
claimed, officers were unable to attend their offices, public records went unprotected during
the summer, prisoners were left in jail, effectively to die, and justices were tempted to give
lighter sentences than the crimes deserved, knowing that the jail was so unhealthy. In the

“ree National Register of Historic Places inventory--Nomination Form for Church of the Holy Trinity,
completed by John Wells and Suzanne Pickens, entered on the NRHP 15 March 1932, on file at SCDAH.

“see National Register of Historic Places Inventory--Nomination Form for Gillisonville Baptist Chasch,
compieted by Norman McCorkle and listed oo the NEHP 14 May 1571, on Fle at the SCDAR.

“see the National Register of Historic Places Inventory~Nomiation Form for Robertville Baptist
Church, completed by Norman McCorkle apd entered on the NRHP 23 February 1972, on file 2t SCDAH.

Ibid., 166; Perry, 77-119.

“Frederick Holmes Christensen, "Coosawhatchie: A paper read before the Beaufort County Historieal
Society,” ms. on fle a1 Beaufort Coonty Public Library, Beaufort, South Carolina, 1944, pages 12-13.

“Tames Petigru Carson, Life, Leners and Speeches of James Lowis Petigrn (Washington: W.H.
Lowdermil & Co., 1520}, 30
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place of Coosawhatchie, the petitioners recommended Gillisonville, which was already "a
summer retreat, the health of which has been fully tested.™* After a number of delays, the
courthouse was finally established in Gillisonville in 1840, where it stayed until 1868 when
Beaufort again became the District’s seat. Coosawhatchie's antebellum undesirability left
a final legacy; the General Assembly had to pass an additional appropriation in 1839 to
cover the shortfall when the courthouse building in Coosawhatchie brought only 32,000 when
sold, "owing to the aimost general desertion of the Village...after the removal of the seat of
justice."” The Gillisonville courthouse burned in the late 1860s, and the coumty seat
removed 10 Beaufort, The courthouse square remains, and continves to be a center for the
bamlet {site 068 0013).

Transpertation remained a problem in the area. Residents in St. Peter's and 3t.
Luke’s parishes continued to call for state-sponsored internal improvements throughout the
antebellum era in their hope to make transportation easier. In the [810s, petiticners,
"deeply impressed with the utility of opening any source of internal navigation for which the
situation of this state is so well calculated," Tequested that the Legislature devise a plan to
open the Coosawhaichie and Salkehatchie Rivers.*? In the 1850s, other petitioners asked
the Governor to hire an engineer to survey the Coosawhatchie Swamp to make it navigable
for rafts.*® Local petitioners recommended many other projects during the antebellum era,
inchuding connecting Beaufort and Augusta by water and a public road across the
Coosawhatchie Swamp.™

Maps from the eighteenth and nineteenth century show a growing, though still
slender, network of roads through the area. The principal developments from the mid-
eighteenth century into the early nineteenth century relate clearly to the arrival of small
interior towns in St. Peter's and St. Luke’s Parish. In particuiar, both Coosawhatchie and
Grahamville served as focal points for two new roads: one from Coosawhatchie through
Grahamville to Purrysburgh, and the other from the Two Sister’s Ferry through Grahamville
to Heyward's Bridge, south of Coosawhatchie, Several of these roads remain in relatively
unimproved condition.

In addition to stage roads, however, railroads also had a minor impact on antebellum
Beaufort District. Charleston merchants from the 1830s until the Civil War sought to forge
commereial ties to various coastal and falagd cities through railroads. Construction on the

*“General Assembly Petitions {1 784-1367), mss. on file at South Carolina Department of Archives and
History, Calembia, Scuik Carolina, 04800.

“Ibid., 00127,
*Tbid., 41431.
Mbid., 00020.

“Thid., 00065, 00013.
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Charleston and $Savanoah Railway began in the 1850s, and was completed in 1860. Jasper
County’s political future was foretold at this time. The residents of Grahamville, a planter’s
summer retreat, saw the noisy and dirty railroad as a threat. They refused to allow a depot.
Instead, the raiircad company placed a depot at the nearby bamlet of Gopber Hill; the
power of the railrcad was such that Gopher Hill blossomed inte the county seat of
Ridgeland (Figure 9).%

The Civii War

Jasper County felt the impact of the Civili War in a very direct way, and its legacy was
mixed. The early efforts of the War in Jasper County were focused on the newly-completed
Charleston and Savannah Railrcad. It provided a vital supply link for the Confederate army,
and the Confederates worked successfully to keep it running. Near the end of the War,
however, troops under the command of General W.T. Sherman marched through the
western section of the county after crossing over the Savannah River. The devastation was
extensive, and memories linger to the present.

The Charleston and Savannah Railroad was developed durng the [850s for
commercial purposes. Commercial potential, however, quickly swyng to military and
strategic potential in the early years of the Civil War. It was most vulperable in the
nertheastern part of Jasper County where it came close to the Coosawbatchie, Tultifinny,
and Pocotaligo tivers. Confederate engineers, under the command of Robent E. Lee who
was based at Coosawhatchie, scon erected a series of defenses along the necks formed by
these rivers.

These fortifications were constructed according to military engineering plans that
were part of standard military training. Men such as D.H. Mahan and H. Wager Halleck
produced textbooks of military strategy that all cadets at West Point studied. These books
outlined the methods of construction and placement of fortifications.” Their strategies
regarding the used of field fortifications, however, differed. Haileck, for example, stressed
the need for defensive fortifications to which commanders could fall back. These
fortifications would allow the troops ta treat the wounded, regroup scattered forces, and
repair materials. "When supported by forts,” he noted, "they can select their opportunity for

"X ovaclk and Winberry, 95-98.

Vsem [NH. Mahan, 4 Complele Treatise on Field Fortification ([N'Y): Wiley & Long, 1836; reprint,
Wastport, CT: Greenwaood Publishers, 1969); Mahan, A Treatise on Field Fortifications (WY John Wiley, 1862).
See also H. Wager Halleck, Elements of Military Art and Science (NY: D. Appleton & Company, 1846; reprint,
Westport, TT: Greeowood Publishers, 19717,
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fighting, and offer or refuse battle according to the probahility of success; and having a safe
place of retreat, they are far less influenced by fear in the actual conflict."”

Mahan took the opposite position in this war of strategies in a later work, published
during the Civil War. Fortifications, he argued, shouid be "defended to the last extremity.”
Not to do so weakens the strategic use of a fortification. His method rejected, he noted,
the strategy "of advanced works thrown up in front of the principal itrenchments; and to
all dispositions of works in several lines, where the object is Tetreat, successively, from one
to the other! Such a system, he argned wouid make for more confusion on the field of
battle and would weaken the morale of those who were in continnal retreat.

Confederate forces in Jasper County took up Halleck’s eatlier strategy of having
cuccessive forts to fall back upon. The strategy proved particularly effective during the
October 1862 Federal raid up Mackey's Point. A Union force of 4,500 troops in two
paralle! arms steamed up the Broad River. Disembarking on the Point, they engaged -
Confederate troops in three successive engagements. Io each case Confederate soldiers,
relying on the series of fortifications, attacked the oncoming Federals then retreated to the
next fortification to the north. The first was at site 470 0416, which consists of a large round
battery with a cannon ramp in the ceoter, while lines of gun emplacements ran out from the
battery. This encounter was at mid-moming. The second engagement, and the most deadly
for the Union troops, was at Frampton's Creek, site 470 0415 (Figure 10}. The Confederates
ther pulled back across the Pocotalige River, burning the bridge after they had crossed;
hete, aceording to Col. T.H. Good of the 47th Penasylvania, "the enemy had thrown up rifle
pits all along the edge.™® The strategy worked, and the railroad remained relatively
unscathed.

The next major engagement in Jasper County was at Honey Hill in late November
1864 (site 428 0419). Federal troops landed at Boyd's Neck and advanced through,
Grahamville in the early morning hours. Confederate forces had created a battery atop a
ridge northeast of Grabamville, which they fortificd with seven guns. The Federal forces
were umable to dislodge the Confederates, and they were forced to retreat. Instead, they
sent troops up Gregorie Neck between the Coosawhatchie and Tullifinny rivers. They
encountered Confederate forces along the road between the two rivers, and secured a
position with access to the raiiroad.” The Honey Hill fortification remaias, though like the

Halleck, 64-55.
*\Mahan, A Treatise on Field Fortificatons, 10; see also page 75 for a reiteration of the point.
#OR Serics [, vol. 14, p. 162

®Report of Maj. Gen. Jokn G. Foster, 1.8, Army, December 7, 1864, Official Records Series 1, vol.
44, 420-421.
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SKETCH OF A SKIRMISH
NEAR COOSAWHATCHIE
1862

Figure 10.  Sketch of an 1862 skirmish near Coosawhatchie (source: Official Records,
series I, vol. 6, p. 171).
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ather batteries is overgrown with trees. Nothing remains of the battle on Gregorie Neck,
however; indeed, Intersiate 95 now runs over a large part of the batilefield.

The Confederate strategy of maintaining a series of earthenwork fortifications proved
successful in the early years of the War. The Charleston and Savannah Railroad remained
open through the conflict, and no successful invasions were mounted through the county.
The area was not so fortunate in 1865, however, as St. Petet's and 5t. Luke’s parishes were
directly in the line of Sherman's marck from Savanpah to Columbia. The areas small
communijties suffered heavily as a result. Grace Fox Perry tells graphic stories of destroyed
towas, citing Robertville, where it js said that nothing left standing in the village but a brick
well curb:" Gillisonville, where "the fires of Sherman’s army leveled the village square” along
with the hotel and several other buildings; and Grahamville which, with “"everything along
the Euhaws road of any value disappeared in a holocaust of Northern vengeance.™’
Apparently, churches were nearly alone in remaining standing, though it seems likely that
a number of smaller houses survived as well. The march of time and of economic
developments, however, took care of most of wiat Sherman’s march failed to destroy.

Postbelium 4daptations

The Civil War brought ar end to official slavery in Scuth Carolina, though the
outlines of the plantation system remained. The relatively abrupt disintegration of the
antebellum economic system resulted in a period of freed African American migration,
reshuffled land ownership, a variety of experimental labor systems for freedmen and whites,
and an era of redefinition of the socio-economic relationships between the freed African
Americans and the white land owners.

Census data (1870, 1880, 1900, and 1910) detajls the postbellum population for
Beaufort County. By 1870, the population of Beaufort County consisted of 29,05 African
American freedmen (84.6 per cent) and 5,309 whites (15.4 per cent). The dominant African
American population of Beaufort County continued through to the beginning of the early
twentietk century; by 1910 over 75 per cent of Beaufort County’s population consisted of
African Ameticans.

At the end of the nineteenth century, a small farmer in Beaufort County could either
own and crop his own land, enter into a rent contract with a large land owner, or squat on
unused and upattended property. Farm tenancy emerged as a dominant form of agricultural
Jand management toward the end of the nineteenth century in South Carclina, and
presented itself in two basic forms:

Sharecropping was a system whereby the landowner provided all that the
renter might need to tend and cultivate the land (i.c., draft animals, farming

TPerry, 20-38 passim.
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implements/tools, seed, and fertilizer). A variety of methods of payment by
the renter couid be arranged. However, usually an agreed portion of the crop
{i.e., a share}, would be surrendered to the landowner. Sharecropping was
appropriate when tenants could not afford the capital cutlay necessary to
purchase seed, animals, and tools.

Cash renting on the other hand, generally represented arrangements where
an agreed suvm of money was paid to the landowner by the tenant farmer. In
these instances, the farmer was more independent and further removed from
the landowmer, and would provide his own animals, feed, seed, and
equipment. This system generally ailowed small farmers to accrue larger sums
of money, and was the preferred arrangement for tenant farmers, as it was
regarded as a profitable operation which would eventuaily help the tenants to
acquire their own property. Cash renting was desirable to the land-lord
because it removed him from the upcertainties of market prices, removed the
capital burden of supplying essential commodities (e.g., seed, fertilizer, and
equipment), and assured a steady cash income.™

The tenancy tenure system had become such a dominant land management force by
the end of the nineteenth century that the 1890 census, for the first time, detailed the many
forms of tepancy. While census statistics for Beaufort County in 1890 and 1900 indicate that
the average farm size was approximately 45 acres, a figure deceptively close to the "40 acres
and a mule" ideal held by the Freedmen's Buseau during Reconstruction, very little of the
county outside of $t. Helena Parish went to the former slaves. In fact, only a small portion
of the St. Helena property seized and sold by the U. 8. Government during and after the
war made it to the hands of freedmen.”® For instance, on the Salem Plantation of Port
Royal Island, only three lots of 20 acres or less each were apparently sold to free African
Americans, These transactions did not occur until 1885 or after, and the property was
quickly repurchased by whites,” Developers actively encouraged small farmers tec immigrate
to the area to break the pattern of large landholding, but their efforts were focused on
whites. Beaufort County’s population remained largely rural and agricultural. Cattle and
swine were the preferred livestock, and an apnual crop of corn and cotton provided needed
JnCOme.

*Paul E. Brockington, Jr., Michael Scardaville, Patrick H. Garrow, David Singer, Linda France, and
Cheryl Holt, Rural Setilement in the Charlesion Bay Area: Eighteenift and Nineteenih Ceniury Sites in the Mark
Clark Epreesway Corridor (Columbia: South Carolina Department of Transportation, 1985).

*¥Willie Lee Rose, Rehearsal for Reconstruciion The Port Royal Experiment (NY: Oxford University
Press, 1954 Theodore Rosengarten, Tombee: Portratt of @ Cotion Planter With Journa! of Thornas B, Chaplin
(1822-1590) (NY: William Morrow and Company, Inc., 1986).

®Beaufort County Deed Book 13: 133, 583, 589, 740, 765.
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The small communities which survive {n Jasper County such as Tiliman, Tarboro,
Gillisonviile, and Grays were commercial centers at the time, particularly when cotton
agriculture was becoming even more dominant. Farmers from as far as ten miles away
would bring their one or two bales of cotton to be ginned, or perhaps their several bushels
of rice to be milled, and purchase goods and socialize. Grays, for example, bad as many as
five stores at the crossroads through the early twentieth century; of these, onc remains in
operation, though in a more recent building, while two others remain as empty shells (203
D383 and 203 0384) (Figure 11).

The Civil War was the beginning of the end of large-scale rice agricuiture along the
Savannah River.” The close presence of Union forces in Port Royal azd Hilton Head
inspired many slaves to run away. Later efforts to replace the slaves with hired workers
proved unsuccessful. Without the regular maintenance of forced labor, the elaborate
networks of canals and dikes quickly deteriorated; the invading forces hastened the physical
destruction of the once-glorious rice fields. In the 1880s and 1890s, moreover, a series of
vicious tropical storms and hnrricanes destroyed the few attempts to rebuild.® In the wake
of the Civil War, few if any capitalists had the vast means to fund the restoration of these
fields; what money there was could be more profitably diverted elsewhere. Some of the rice
plantations continued to operate, and on a significant scale; in 1879, for example, nearly
13,000 acres of land in Beaufort County yielded over 10,500 pounds of rice. The end,
however, was near.

Much of the land that comprised these plantations was broken up into parcels. This
was one result of the increasing strength of the tenure system. Small farmers, even some
Alfrican Americans, often acquired smail plots from tracts that once were large plantations.
It is likely that most of such lots would have had small or medivm sized vernacular farm
houses. Several possible examples of these houses have been found, some with more
recognized styles. Three one-sicry central passageway houses on raised foundations show
the upper end of these farm buildings, site 109 0013 mear Coosawhatchie (see Figure 12},
203 0394 porthwest of Gillisonville, and 203 0379 west of Grays. Smailer, unaltered versions
are more difficult to lacate, but possible examples can be found, such as site 109 0014 near
Coosawhatchie and particularly site 216 0260 north of Hardeeville.

These small lots became mere difficult to maintain in the late nineteenth century.
While the !ate 1860s and 1870s had seen the dissolution of all or part of many former

"R owland, "Alone on the River,” 147-150.
Sihid., 149.

“"Rice Statistics for 1879, Palmetto Post {Beaufort, South Carolina}, 23 March 1879,
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plantations, new men of money arrived from the outside to reconsolidate them later in the
century. Some of these monted outsiders sought recreation and spert. The two most
notable examples were the Pineland Club, perhaps South Carolina’s first hunt club when
formed in the mid 18705 (site 400 0429}, and the Okeetee Club, formed a decade later. The
Pineland Club begun as a hunting club in 1877 by a group of New York men who held the
Property as a tontine, the title residing with the surviving members. The last members were
gone by the late 1940s, and it passed into various private hands. The Okeetee Club,
meanwhile, has remained as a hunt club since its founding in 1893. The bulk of its property
still lies porthwest of Hardeeviile.®

An even more powerful force ammved at the same time. In the 1330s and 1890s, large
timber companies began buying up the former agricvltural lands and exploiting the timber.
This represenis 2 dominant theme in the development of Jasper County and the surrounding
areas, as well as throughout the South. The yield of timber from southern forests doubled
between 1880 and 1899, and in the first three decades of the twentieth century the Scuth’s
share of the nation's timber production rose from vnder cne-third to nearly one-half®
These early timber industries were exploitative in the worst sense, symbolized most
graphically by the turpentine industry, which bled the trees of their vitality and left the hulks
to deteriorate and in danger from fire. Many of these lumber companies remained ia
business in the area for only a few decades before either going bankrupt or moving on. Cne
low counntty plantation owrer, Mrs. Hanstene, acknowledged in a letter to her sen Henry
in 1889 that "I bave had many offers from turpentine mep for my trees--but your Father
always advised me not to have my trees used for that purpose danger of fire etc. etc. & |
thought I would not get much of the money.” It must have been a temptation, however, as
she also acknowledged in regard to the land, "No crop has it yielded since 1860."%

Several timber companies purchased extensive tracts in Beaufort County in the late
nineteenth century, some of them in what is now Jasper County. FEstill and Varn were just
across the May River on Palmetto Bluff, while the Export Lumber Company of Boston
purchased several tracts in northern Jasper County in 1913 and 1914. The Savannah River
Lumber Company, the New River Lumber Company, and the Pierpont Company all
operated in Jasper County as well,

“Cynthia Cole, Historic Resonrces of the Lowecouniry: A Regiona! Survey of Beaufort County, 5.C,
Colleton Counly, 5.C., Hampton County, 5.C., Jasper County, S.C. (Yemassee, South Caroliva: Lowcountry
Couneil of Governments, 1979; revised edition, 1990}, 177

“Francis Butler Simkins and Charles Picrce Roland, A Histery of the South (New York: Alfred A.
Koopf, 1972}, 467.

“Mrs. Hartstene to Menry, 17 January 1889, in Burn Family Papers, Mss on fle at the South
Carcliziana Library, University of South Carolina, Columbia, South Carolina.
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Twentieth Century Changes

The Victorjan era process of recombining the earlier plantations continned into the
twentieth century. The impact on the county’s physical resources was dramatic. Neither
lumber nor hunting required the small farm houses that dotted the county, and many fel
into desuetude. In trying to understand the paucity of nineteenth century buildings in Jasper
County, one must also take demographics into account. Jasper County, as late as 1929, still
had by far the lowest population of any county in the state, with under 10,000 residents.%

The twentieth century saw vast changes in the agriculture of the low country. Several
factors precipitated the changes, including the rapid drop in cotton profitability, the
increased temptation of cash lzbor opportunities in other areas of the state, soil depletion,
and the increased prefitability of Tand sales to outside investors. Truck farming came to
replace rice and cotton farming as the area’s agricultural mainstay. The late nineteenth and
carly twentieth centuries also witnessed the expansion of the timber industry throughout the
southern portions of South Carolina. As farm lands and rice plantations were abandened,
pite forests covered the formerly cleared land. Jasper Coupty’s landscape is clearly far
different than what it bad been a century ago.

The Argent Lumber Company, based in Hardeeville, arose in the ¢arly twentieth
century. It was the most importaot of several lumber companies that operated in the
County. H.W. Philips of Suffolk, Virginia secured logging rights to the timber on the
Okeetee Club west of Hardeeville, and contracted with the Garysburg Manufacturing
Company of Garysburg, North Carolina to mill the lumber in 1916.% The Argent Lumber
Compapy had a planing mill, duy kiln, and storage shed along the Atlantic Coast Line
Railroad in Hardeeville at its junction with the Southern Railway. At the same time, Argent
created a network of railroads throughout the county to ring the lumber from remote tracts.
These railrcads went north from Hardeeville toward Switzerland, then east toward Jasper
where Argent cut timber in the Great Swamp.® At least two rempants of tbese lumber
railroads remain in the county. One is a road bed on a plantation near Robertville (site 400
0387.03), while the other is a row of abandoned pilings crossing a remote lake along the
Savapnah River (site 431 0431). These railroad lines used narrow-gaunge engines to haul the
platforms; Argent’s Engine Number 7 remains on permanent display at the Hardeeville
Town Hall, site 216 0227, Several Argent mill houses remain in the county, moved away
when Union Paper-Camp Bag Company (now Unjon-Camp Corporation) purchased the

15tk Census of the United States, 1930 vol. 3, Manufactures, 434,

*Thomas Feters, Logging Rafiroads of South Carofina {Forest Park, IL: Heimburger House, 1990),
163,

*Thid., 163-164.
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Argent properties in the late 1950s. Sites 400 0320 near Robertville and 216 §267 in
Hardeevilie are exampies.”™

The Ritter Lumber Company of Ohio was also important, particularly in the northern
part of the county. The ruins of the boiler and drying kiin for the Ritter Company still
survive in "Hardwood," 2 community south of Tillman (site 513 0294)." A house from the
Ritter miil town survives as site 400 0387.02. Lumber processed at Gilmania, near
Coosawhatchie, provided building materizls for many focal houses, incleding Spring Hill
Plantation near Ridgeland in 1914 (site 109 0196).”

Peter Coclanis has argued that the devastation of the low country’s economy since
the demise of the rice industry in the late nineteenth ard early twentieth centuries was due
to the very forces that propelled the low country’s economy in the eighteenth and nineteenth
centuries. The centuries-long dependence on staple crop industry, he argues, left residents
in the low country without the economic infrastructure to develop new and more complex
industries. Instead, new capital in the area was invested in extractive industries, such as
timber products and phosphate mining, limited manufacturing enterprises, military

installations, and tourism.”

These forces were ofter conjoined in the persons of wealthy northern men who
invested in both recreational and agnicultural lands in Beaufort, Jasper, and Hampton
Counties. Northern businessmen led a "second northern invasion” of sorts as they acquired
vast amounts of land in the South in the early twentieth century.™ It was a different type
of movement from the early lumber and bunt club purchases in the late nineteenth century.
Indeed, many of the families that formed the new plantations were introduced to the area
by hunt clubs. Paradoxcally, many of these northern jnvestors were drawn thitker by the
ideal of the Old South, with landed gentry presiding over vast plantations. This testified to
the lure of the Lost Cause throughout the nation, and the vogue of Confederate Reunions.
This same 1mage also helped to spark the rise of tourism to the Scuth in the late ninetzenth
century.

These new lapdowners contivued the process of reconsolidating the historic
plantations that the lumber companies had begun in the late nineteenth century. The pew
owners began acquiring individual plots surrounding their lands in the early twentieth

™Wicky Edecnlield, persanal communication, % April 1996.
"'Fetters, 163.

Rlgcelyn Clark, persanal commuaication, 8 February 1994,
PCoclanis, Shadow af @ Dream, 154-156.

Msee George £ Rogers, I, The History of Georgetown County, Sowth Carofine (Columbia: University
of South Carolina Press, 1970), chapter 21, for the first and clearcst interpretation of this process.
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MAP OF PINELAND PROPERTY
JASPER COUNTY
1940

Figure 14. 1940 Map of the Pineland Club property, showing the locations of the club
house and ocutbuildings. Note also the isclated plots of independently held
land.
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century. A 1923 map shows the patchwork of property owners throughout the county
(Figure 13); the Pineland Club still faced islands of small property owners within its
baundaties in 1940 {Figure 14).

The seat of the once-powerful Huguenin family, for example, 25,000 acres in two
plantations, was broken up and sold several times in the late nineteeuth century. Julian
Clark purchased 4,000 acres in 1914, named it Spring Hill Plantation, and built a "Southern
Colenial” home (site 109 0196).” Good Hope Plantation, formerly lands belonging to the
mighty Heyward family, was purchased and resold several times from the 1850s until Herbert
L. Pratt, a Standard Oil executive from New York, purchased it in 1510 for vse as a bunting
lodge. While the main lodge at Good Hope burned in the late 1930s, with a replacement
in 1944, other buildings remain from the earlier era (site 428 0328).” Davant Plantation,
meanwhile, pear Gillisonville, was purchased ju the 1930s by the Berolzheimer family of
New Y??rk, who created a new "colonial” house around an clder nineteenth century one (068
0253}

These new plantations were more than simple recreational facilities, however. Most
of the new owners saw them as investments, and sought to turn them inio working
plantations, though with different crops or animals. In addition, owners of the county’s
hunting clubs, under local pressure, agreed to cooperate in drainage projects, good roads
movements, and school improvement schemes, in addition to not opposing a pending bill
in the state legislature to require those who hold more than 5,000 acres in game preserves
to pay an annual licensing fee which would benefit the local area.™ Interestingly, bowever,
amid all of these changes in ownership, the continuities were powerful. In nearly every case,
the dominant rice plantations of the eighteenth and early nineteenth century had absentee
owners, families living in local cities or in the Nerth who had local managers and overseers
running the farm operations. This model rarely changed with the new owmers of the
twentieth century, Nearly all of the new plantation owners hired local managers and crews
to carry out the various agricultural opstations.

Jeremiah Millbank provided the most complete description of this process in his
reminiscences, Turkey Hill Plantation.™ This book offers a useful case study for the process
of turning these antebeilum plantations into modern, kopefully more efficient agricultural
complexes in the twentieth ceatury. Millbank, a friend of Mrs. Bayard Dominick wha lived

Parry, 142-144.
®Jane Powell, personat communication, 11 March 1996,

TPerry, 144-145; Rutledge Mocre, personal communication, 12 February 1996, see also the 1935 plat
of the Berolzheimes's plantation is the Jasper County Plat Book 3, page 37, 1939.

®unting Clubs are Ready to Co-operate,” Beaufort Gazere, § February 1917.

B eremiah Millbank, with Grace Fox Perry, Turkey Hill Plantation (privately printed, 1966).
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at Gregorie Neck Plantation, purchased neariy 20,000 acres of land in northeastern Jasper
County in 1940 from the Savannah River Lumber Compapy. This massive tract included
several antebellum plantations, and Millbank named the new entity, Turkey Hill Plaatation,
after one of them. He built 2 new house, designed by Willis [tvin, of Aiken, South Carolina,
again in the "southern colonial” style.® Millbank spent several years in the early 1940s
building thirteen canals on the estate, draining the lands into the Great Swamp. With this
newly reclaimed land, Millbank first experimented with truck crops, none of which proved
successful. Grains, however, did well, particularly com, cats, and hay. Along with these, he
expenmented with hybrid cattle. By 1950 he had also turned to raising turkeys, though they
fell victim to a form of malaria whichk spread throughout the Cousty. While managing
10,000 acres for recreation purposes, he used the plantation as a demonstration preject for
mechanization and fertilization products, and for diversified agricultural activities.

Jasper County was created in 1912, Ridgeland, emerging in the 1880s from the
hamiet of Gopher Hill, served as the source for the petitions for a new county. Attempts
to form a new county out of the vast expanse of Beanfort County were nothing new;
Hampton County, the northern section of Beaufort County, came inte exstence in 1878,
while there was talk in 1901 about forming a Heyward County.¥ A group of men in
Ridgeland began new discussions in 1910, and canvassed the area to develop support. An
election of those in the proposed county, to be named after the Revolutionary War hero
William Jasper, was held in July 1911. The voters in Gillisonville, Grahamville, Grays,
Ridgeland, Coasawhatchie, Tillman, and other towns in Hampton and Beaufort County
approved the new county overwhelmingly, 233 to 24.¥ C.E. Perry, one of the osiginal
supporters of the new county, donated the land for the new courthouse in Ridgeland, which
was designed by William Augustus Edwards (site 428 0003); Persy's colonial revival house
remains close to the courthouse on Adams Strest (site 428 0158).¥ The outlines of the new
county were sutveyed in 1912 by Theodore Hamby and R.C. Nixson, and the Geperal
Assembly approved the new county in 1912.%

Ridgeiand grew as the new county seat, but not quickly. The railroad provided both
the basis for growth as well as the growing town's orientation. The railroad, and its depot,
formed the center of town, much as US Highway 17 does now. The range of commercial
buildings which remain along Green and Railroad Streets testify to the centrality of the

®The style would be more accurately described as a mix of French eclectic and Tidewater plantaticn.
#*The New County,” Palmefto Post, 12 September 1901,
=Bright New Star in County Constellation,” Beauforr Gazette, 21 July 1911.

¥see the National Register of Historic Places Taventory--Nomination Form for the Jasper County
Courthouse, estersd on the NRHP 30 Oaober 1981, on e at SCDAH

HJasper County Misceltaneous Deed Book, pages 133-134; Acts and Joint Resolutions...of the Generol
Assembly of the State of South Carolfing 1912, 827-841.
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railroad (see Figure 15). Businesses faced the tracks where the travelers would depart, while
other stores, such as those in the Perry block (site 428 0085) lined Main Street which
extended away from the tracks.

This spatial organization changed in the late 1920s when the new "Coastal Highway"
passed through Ridgeland. This national road, now Smart Boulevard in Ridgeland, provided
a new focus for commercial activties, and reoriented the village; east and west sections of
the village now relied on the Highway for their standards rather thao the railroad. Articles
in the Beaufort Gazente heralded the new road and encouraged local support. A 1925 article
in particular captured the excitement of the project:

If you have any vision as to what a miracle 300,600 autemobiles moving through out
coast country will bring to our very doots, get behind the construction of your joint
of the road. Few of us have vet dreamed of what the hard road and the automabiies
will bring to us... The cars have been bought--the filing stations dot the wayside--
hetels and farm houses will feed and shelter the touristss. If you live aleng this
highway, it is one of the opportunities of your life to awaken your neighbors as to the
God-given natural advantages possible to your community, yowr town and your
State.®

Several eatrepreneurs took advantage of these possibilities, A service station im 2
Mediterranean style standing at the comer of Main Street and Smart Boulevard {site 428
0024} beckoned the automobilists, while the developers of the Ridgeland Mote] (site 428
0033; see Figurc 16) in the early 1930s drew upon images of Mt. Vernon to attract weary
travelers.

Houses in the town reflect this quiet and steady growth, as modest bungalows from
the 1920s ard 1930s prevail. The area west of US 17, the "Coastal Highway," gives the best
evidence of these houses, particularly along Green Street (see, for example, sites 428 0083,
428 0169, and 428 0128) (Figure 17). A strong presence of Craftsman style hemes, also
popular in the early twentieth century, is also clear, particularly at the corner of Russell
Street and First Avenue (see sites 428 0147, 428 0143, and 428 0149) (Figure 18). Another
variation on the Craftsman style, which drew upon Japanese infiuences, can be seea across
US 17 on East Main Street (site 428 0042), while the best example of the ever-popular
Colonial Revival style is the Ryan House, also on East Main Street (site 428 0043), buiit in
1905.

Hardeeville, once a fashionabie resort for antebellum planters, was nearly destroyed
during the Civil War. 1t reemerged in the tweatieth century with the arrival of the railroad
and especially afier 1916 when it served as the headquarters for the Argent Lumber

“Wade Stackhouse, "Development of the South Carolina Coast Country,” Beaufors Gazere, 23 July,
1925, Charlton's 1923 Map of Jasper Couniv also refers to a "Proposed State Highway” between Hardeeville
and Ridgeland.
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The Coburp House, 306 Main Strect in Hardeeville, site 216 0212, . 1925.

Figure 19.
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Company. Hardeeville was divided between Jasper and Beaufort Couniies when Jasper
County was created: it did oot enter Jasper County fully until after World War II. Several
homes give testimony to the town's rising fortunes, and show the presence of several

powerful families such as the McTeers, Coburns, and Hutsons (sites 216 0212, 216 0222, and
216 0238} (Figure 193

Other towns in the county remained small, aibeit vital centers for local trade and
milling. Grays was a thriving center into the early twentieth century, as was Gillisonville
despite the loss of the courthouse in the 1860s. Five stores, including one run by Afnican
Americans, two blacksmiths, a turpentine still, grits and saw mills, a cotton gin, 2nd a post
office testified to Gillisonville’s activity.® Tillman, which was known as Hennie's Crossroads
through the 1870s, gained a post office through the support of Congressman George Tiliman
along with a railroad depot.™ T, like the other viliages in the county, became a cellection
of houses, stores, mills, and 2 doctor's office (site 513 0347) by the 1920s.

According to the 1937 General Highway Map of Jasper County, Ridgeland was
¢clearly the county’s center of populatioz with 715 residents. Tillmaa {population 398},
Pocotaligo (population 317), Switzerland {population 200), and Coosawhatchie {population
160) were also significant centers. Other towns such as Grays, Pineland, Robertviile, and
Gillisonville had fewer than 100 residents each. In this heavily rural county, railroads
spurred the only dreams of development. Tillman provides the most graphic example of
railroad-inspired dreams of urbas development. M. Conniffe, the town's depot masiet,
attempted to form a sebdivision along the railroad (Figure 18). The lots were very small,
and the intended population did not materialize; the subdivision failed, a 1929 map shows
a pattern of houses very similar to today (Figure 20). As the county grew institutiopally,
schools came to play an important part. The prevailing pattern for education was to have
many small one- or two-room frame schoolbouses spaced widely throughout the county.
Raised up on brick or wood piers, these were probably little different in appearance from
the surrounding houses. The new county began attempting to bring these together in the
19205 with regional consolidated schools. The county built four large brick schocls, largely
Colonial Revival style but with significant stylistic additions, in Grays {site 203 0398),
Hardeeville (site 216 0211), Ridgeland (site G428 0035), and Tillman (site 513 0021). All
four of these schools survive, though none is used as a school.

Few of Jasper County’s historic resources are clearly visible to the passing visitor.
Old houses in the small villages and in the countryside are far from the interstate which now
bisects the County, while the plantations remain hidden, veiled subtly behind screens of
pines and avenues of live oaks. Buiidings and structures spread throughout the County,
however, speak quietly of the County’s history to those willing to [ook and reflect. Change
has been slow while continuities remain strong. Concentration of land exists side-by-side

*D). Peterman, personal communication, 5/1/96.

" Parry, Moving Finger of Insper
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with small farms, from the plantation owners and yeoman farmers of the eighteenth and
nincteenth centuries to the timber companies and {ocal residents of the twentieth century.
The County's process of growth shows in the buildings that remain; guardizns of Jasper
County’s future will do well to lock to them and to the patterns which they represent.
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11.  National Register Properties in Jasper County

Four properties have been listed on the National Register of Historic Places [NRHP]
in Jasper Counnty to date:

Mame Location Dhate Listed

Gillisonville Baptist Church US 278, Gillisanwille 5/1471

Robertville Baptist Church Junction US 321 and SR 26, 22372
Robertville

Jasper County Courthouse Russell Street, Ridgeland 1072021

Church of the Holy Trinily Junction CR 13 and CR 29, near 32582
Ridgeland

12. Evaluation

Evaluations of significance, in terms of eligibility for the NRHP, must be based on
several criteria. Age, integrity, and conditicn are significant baseline factors in determining
the eligibility of a historic resource for the NRHP. These factors must be balanced,
however, against the historic context within which these resources exist. The histotical
overview presented in item 9 of this report identifies general patterns of development in
Jasper County, and serves as a foundation for understanding the historical context. Several
themes derived from this historical overview guided the recommendations for poteatial
NRHP eligibility.

1) Agriculture is the prepotent historical fact in Jasper County’s history, particularly
in the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. Farming, both large- and small-scale, formed
the basis of the County’s economy as well as jts social relations. The impact on the
landscape and on the built eavironment has been profound. The extensive modifications
to the areas along the Savannah River for rice cultivation are the most dramatic example,
but other manifestations include farm buildings and complexes, fieid patterns, and
sharecroppers'/tenant houses. Given the tendency to recombine old plaptation lands that
bad devolved into small landholdings, the existing stock of late nineteenth and early
twentieth century farm buildings is small. Six examples of both large and small scale houses
and sites have been recommended eligible for the NRHP.

2y Lumbering bas been one of the most important sub-categories of agriculture in
Jasper County. Its role in shaping the County's landscape and influencing its economic and
social patterns in the twentieth century has been profound. As with agriculture generally,
the physical remains are few. Brockington and Associates, Inc., has placed special emphasis
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on identifying houses, structures, and objects that can help to document this important
aspect of Jasper County's history. Cue site has been recommended eligible for the NRHF.

3) Conservation/Recreation is a theme which closely coincides with agricuiture, and
that comes to dominate by the twentieth century. By the late nineteenth ceatury many of
the former plantations were acgquired first by companies from both northern and southemn
states and operated 2nd managed as timber lands. In the early twentieth century most of
these former plantations, and some of the timber lands, began passing into the hands of
wealthy northern investors for use as humting clubs, seasonal retreats, and agricultural
demonstration projects. This often involved further extensive modifications to the landscape
as well as erecting mew residential and agricultural structures. Over two-thirds of the
County’s land is hekd in these large units, along with remaining tracts of timber lands. ‘They
now constitute the dominant land-use pattern in the County. Many of the buildings on
these plantations are relatively recent, dating to the 1920s, 1930s, and 1940s. Given their
importance fu documenting a significant trend in Jasper County's development, eight
plantations and clubs have been recommended eligible for the NRHP.

4} Settlement patterns guided much of Jasper County's political landscape. The Swiss
Purrysburgh settlement, though not long-lasting, was the first important urban settlement
in what is now Jasper County. The pattemn of towns that now exists, other than Purrysburgh
and Coosawhatchie, is largely a nineteenth century creation, from antebellum towns like
Gillisonwville and Hardeeville to the more modern Ridgeland and Tillman. Buildings in these
incorporated villages clearly reflect this period of siguificance. Many of the once-thriving
town centers have Jost much of their vitality, however, in the advent of more extensive paved
roads and larger, more centralized commercial centers. Brockington and Associates, Inc.,
made an attempt to identify what remains of these town centers such as Grays, Tiliman,
Tarboro, Coosawhatchie, Robertville, and Gillisonville, in addition ta the larger village of
Hardeeville, The consolidated schools of the 1920s were important features of several of
these towns. Three of the schools, along with four houses and one doctor’s office have been
recommended eligible for the NRHP.

In particular, Ridgeland benefited from its selection as the seat of the new county in
1912. It received an added boost when US Highway 17, the "Coastal Highway" went through
the viliage. One building which reflects this development has been recommended eligible
for the NRHP.

5) Commercial activities have been the focus, if not the reascn for the existence, of
the County’s small viflages from the eighteenth century into the early twentieth century.
Given their role in defining their communaities and providing crucial social networks, this
survey has paid particular attention to the County’s stores, from the general stores of the
late mineteenth century to the chain stores and tourist-oriented facilities of the twentieth.
Two such buildings have been recommended eligible for the NRHP.

60



6} Transportation patterns closely parallel those of the towns, as towns naturaily arose
along the few roads and at river crossings in the eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries.
Coosawhatchie is the principal eighteenth century exampie. This process continved in a
different form in the nineteenth century, as Ridgeland was primarily a creation of the
Charleston and Savannah Railroad. Meanwhile, roads were developed to link important
settlements and points of access to water transportation. This pattern of inland roads has
had a much greater role in influencing the historic Tesources that remain in Jasper County
than the Savangah River, which played so great role in the eighteenth century. An attempt
kas been made to identify historic roadways. Twao historic roads on plantations and one
public road have been recommended eligible for the NRHP.

7) Churches have been places for socialization as well as devotion thronghout Jasper
County’s history. From at least the 1830s, most of the County’s residents, particularly but
not exclusively the yeomen, were strongly evangelical, and had a series of churches to fulfitl
their devotional needs. Jasper County's churches are one of the principal sets of resources
which remain from the antebellum era. The three most noteworthy churches in Jasper
County, Giilisonville Baptist Church, the Church of the Holy Trinity in Grahamvlle, and
Robertville Baptist Chusch, have already been listed on the NRHP. Two other churches
have been recommended eligible for the NRHP.

8) Military activities, particularly duning the Civil War, bad profound impacts on
Jasper County. The Civil War lefta destructive legacy in the County, as a large number of
the standing structures were destroyed in a short time in 1865. This situation suggests that
Jate nineteenth and twentieth century buildings wiil dominate the survey; clearly, buildings
which survived the Civil War will be given an important consideration. At the same time,
the Civil War had a more positive legacy on Jasper County’s architectural and engineering
history. The remains of military fortifications, such as the breastworks that were erected
during the Civil War, are scattered throughout the county, and represent significant
resources. It is recommended that a thematic historic district including these military

fortifications be defined and recommended eligible for the NRHP.
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South Carolina Department of Archives and History

1430 Senste Streei, P.0. Box 11,669, Coilgcmbin, South Carclina 29211 (303} T34-B377
State Records (03] T34-T914; Local Records (SG3 7341017

JASPER COUNTY SURVEY
NATIONAL REGISTER EVALUATIONS

PROPERTIES DETERMINED ELIGIBLE FOR LISTIKG IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF
HISTORIL PLACES

The following determinations are based on evaluaticons of the Jasper County
survey by the State Historic Preservation Office {SHPO) of the S5.C.
Department of Archives and History. It 1s the opinicon of the SHPFO that the
propertias meet, with the exception of those found worthy of further
investigation, the eligibility criteria for inclusion in the National
Register of Historic Places. These determinations are based on the present
architectural integrity and awvailable historical information for the
properties included in the Jasper County Survey. Preperties may be removed
from or added to this list if changes are made that affect a property’'s
physical integrity. Historical information that is brought to the
attention ¢of the National Register specialist confirming or denying a
property's historic significance may also affect a property’'s eligibility
status. The process of identifying and evaluating historic properties is
navar complete. The SHPO encourages readers of this report to alert the
Hational Register specialist to properties that may have been omitted
during this evaluation.

National Register field evaluations ware conducted by SHPO staff Andrew W.
Chandler and Jenay Dilworth, in conjunction with consultant Bruce G. Harvey
of Brockington & Associates, on July 31 and August 1, 1986,

PROPERTIES ELIGIBLE FOR INDIVIDUAL LISTING IN THE NATIONAE REGISTER

The SHPO considers the following properties to be eligible for individual
listing in the Natiocnal Register of Histori¢ Places. The Jasper County
Survey site number and the histeoric or common name, if knewn, are given
along with the Naticnal Register Criteria for Evaluation (Criterion A, B,
or C) and/or Criteria Considerations (abbreviated "CC") under which the
property qualifies.

068900123 Gillisonville Sguare A: Politics
2030378 Cope House t Architecture
2030385 Cleland House A Social History;
C: Architecture
2030394 Langford House t Architecture
2030398 Grays Consclidated School A: Education;

C: Architecture



Jasper County Survey Evaluations, page 2

2160211
2160216
2160217
2160222
2160414
2160427
3010375
3290402

4000356
4280033

42802323
4280250

42B0435

5130021
5130294

5130304

5130347

Hardeeville Consolidated School
Heyward House

Hardeaville United Methodist Church
McTeer House, Hardeeville
Charleston and Savannah Highway
Hagood's Service Station

White's Grocery and Gas

David Thomas Freecman House

Warnock House
Ridgeland Motel

whitehall (Tabby Ruins)

Euhaw Baptist Church

Thomas Heyward, Jr., Grave {(Qld House

Plantatioen Site]

Tillman Consolidated School

Ritter Lumber Company Drying
Kiln Ruins

Fleming House

Tillman Doctor's Office

R

 #m #a Fa

Avar» » NPOod

Education;
Architectore
Architecture
Architecture;
a: Religiocus
Property
Social History;
Architecture
Transportation
Commerce
Commerce
Agriculture;
Architectire
Architecture
Commerce;
Architecture
Thomas Heyward;
Architecturs
Religion;
Architecture;
a: Religious
Property

Social History;
Thomas Heyward,
d: Cemetery
Education;
architecture

Industry;
Social History
Sorial History;
Architecture
Social History;
Architecturesa

Jr.:
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CCMPLEXES ELIGIBLE FOR LISTING IN THE MNATIOMAL REGISTER

The SHFQ considers the following complexes, or collections of historically
or physically related properties, to be eligible for the Mational Register
of Historic Places., The historic or ¢ommon name, if known, and Jasper
County Survey site number are given along with the National Register
Criteria for Evaluation (Criterion A, B, or C) and/or Criteria
Considerations (abbreviated "CC") under which the property gualifies.

: Social Histeory;
: Architecture

Davant Plantation A
DE8E253.00 Main House o

.01 8lave Kitchen

.02 B5Slave cCabin

.03 Tenant House

.04 Tenant House

.05 Rental House

.06 Hay Barn

.07 Dog Kennel

.0B Stable
Turkey Hill Plantatian A: Social History;
1090430.00 Main House C: Architecture
.01 Savannah River Lumber Company Office
Haureen Plantation A: Social History;
2160273.00 Maln House C: Architecture
.01 Manager's House
.02 Barn
.03 Shed
.03 EBgquipment Shed
-05 Corn Crib
.06 Worker's Houses
.07 Smokehouse
.08 (Garage
Delta Plantation A: Social History;
30104022.00 Mailn House Transportation;
.01 Union Causeway/Screven Ferry/ Military;
Rochester Ferry C: Architecture

.02 Hardee Cemetery

.03 Civil war Fortification
.04 House [probably tenant]
.03 Tenant Quarters

.08 Barn Complex

.07 Manager's House
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Cypress Creek Plantation

4000387.00
.01
402
-03
.04

Jesse Ives House [Main House]
0ld Augusta Road

Ritter Mill House [moved]
Railroad Bed

Three Sisters Ferry Road

Pineland club

4000429. 00

.01
.02

Main House [Bormes House] and
Cak Allees [landscape]

Cabin #1

Catbin #2

Red Bluff Plantation

4110082.00
.01
.02
.03
.04
05
.06

Barn

Civil War Battery
House Ruins
Caretaker's Cottage
Tractor Shed

Grain House
Caretaker's Cottage

Chelsea Plantation

4280257.090
+ 81
.02
.03
0
.05
.06
D7
.08
.09
.10
+11
12
v13

Main House
Garage [Farm]
Barn

Egquipment Shed
Shed

House

House

Pump House
Small House
Tenant House
Small House
Small House
Small House
Garage [for Main House]

Social History;
Transporation;
Architecture

Social History;
Architecture

Social Hlstory:
Military:
Architecture

Social History;
Architecture
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Good Hope Plantation A: Bocial History;
4280328.00 Main House C: Architecture

.01 Dining Guests House

.02 Manager's House

-03 Dog Trainer's House

.04 Guests Residence

.35 Dog Kennels

.06 Stables

.07 Garage
-08 Shed
.08 Bhed

PROFERTIES WORTHY OF FURTHER INVESTIGATION

The following list includes historic properties that are worthy of further
investigation. Additicnal information about these properties may gualify
or disqualify them for listing in the Naticnal Register. We encourage
property owners or interested citizens to contact the Natisnal Register
staeff at the 5.C. Department of Archives and History with additicnal
information that may be helpful in making this determination.

06801341 186 Sardis Recad - good, intact example of a type; history
unknown

1090015 Wade House - good, intact example of a type; history prior to
1536 unknown

2030380 Oak Grove Baptist Church - appears to have good integrity;
history unknown; need early photographs

2030383 Leg Smith Store - good example of rural commercial type;
disappearing rescurce; history unknown

2030384 Cope’'s Store - good example; history unknown; was porte cochere
added? If so, when?

2030387 Peeples House - date of construction? Was it always a
residence? Is front porch an addition?

2160025 Purrysburgh Road/Savannah Road - integrity? Could more be
included?

2160212 Coburn House - tourist home? built by same pecple who built
McTear House?

2160238 D.C. Hutson Heouse - intact and interesting vernacular form;
‘history unknown

2160422 Jug Wells - Qrigin? How many are there? Integrity?

3010372 Lassiter Store - date of construction for 2nd story porch and
other alterations; history unknown

4000357 Unidentified Reobertwille House - good, intact example of farm
house; cutbuildings?; history unknown

4280007 Masonic Hall/Home Furnishing Company - date of canstruction?
Was 2nd story added later?

4280011 Small Masonry Building - early telephone/electric exchange

building?
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1280042 J.M. Woods House, 124 East Main Street, Ridgeland - good,
excellent, intact example of type; history unknown

4280058 Wise House - large and signficant in Ridgeland; however,
alterations remain a guestion

4280159 B.J. Perry House ~ intact example; history unknown

INACCESSIBLE PROPERTIES

The following historic properties could not be accessed in July/August
1996, because of vegetation overgrowth; however, they will be visited in
the winter of 1996-1997 when visibility will net be impaired.

1090418 Civil War Battery, Bees Cregk

3010372 Civil War Battery, New River

4280271 Upland Rice Fields, R & M Plantation
4700414 Civil War Battery, Mackay Point Plantation

B-22-1996/ANC




13. Data Gaps

Every reasonable effort was made to gain access to the historic sites in Jasper County
during the fieldwork for this survey. As mentioned in section 8 above, much of Jasper
County's land is held in large private holdings. Permission was required to survey properties
within these private holdings, and was secured for most.
unsurveved, including Bird Hope, Mackay Point, Okeetee Club, Hoover, Tarboro, Roseland,
Gregorie Neck, and Sherwood. Areas which were not accessible for this survey are indicated
on the maps that accompany this report. In addition, Federal holdings in the Savannah
River National Wildlife Refuge were not surveyed during this fieldwork.

14. Inventery of Historic Properties in Jasper County

Brozhron Quadsangle

Several plantations remain

Sie Na, Mame Date Type CiryVie. Locmrion
Q5% D353 Unnamed House c 1940 D Robertville ﬂ: 119, 0.9 miles Mortftwess of 3R
Calfpen Bay Quadranghe

Sile Na, Mame Dale Type Citw¥ic, Laocation

D68 0013 Gillisomville Square o LB40 M Gillisomville Jop US 278 and 5C 482

068 025300 Dravanl Plantaiion, Main House ¢ lEMm D Gillisomdille Off $C 467

068 25301 Slave Kitchen « 1350 5] Gillisonwville see abuwe

088 0253002 Slave cabin ¢ 1350 D Gillisooville see above

Ood 025303 Tenant house = LR o Grillisaeviile sec abone

066 025304 Tenant house « 1939 o Gillisomille s=e abone

068 X253.05 Rental howuse « 1910 D Gillisomedle see above

048 (25300 Hay bam <« 1930 M Gillisouaville sct abonee

Q66 8307 Dog kennei e 1939 | Dillmonville see above

068 0253.08 Stabie e 1939 M Gillsonviilc ses abave

048 4311 Uninanted House . 1920 D Ridgeland Tarboro Boad, TR 12, 1.5 mi. from
eastern end of paverient

D68 0340 Unnamed Houge c 195 D Ridgeiand CR 39 (187 Ol Dam Rd}

068 D341 Unnamed House o 188¢ Ridgeland CR 149 (156 Sardis Rd.), nocthern

63
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058 0355 Unnamed Heass « 1930 4] Gillsonvalle CR 745, 0.4 miles West of Gillisonville
Squars

(& 0403 Linnamed House ¢ 1930 [& Giflisonville CR 359, 0.2 miles South of 5C 442

Coasawhatchie Chuadrang|e

Sile No, Name Draee Type i, Location

10% D061 Gillisonville Baptist Chorch 1838 R Gillisonyille 5C 462, 0.2 miles saucheast of
Gillisorviile Square

109 014 Unnamed House <. 1900 o Coosaedatchis S0 462, ¢ 2 miles West of
Cocsawhatehie

10 0015 Wade House o, 1900 D Cocsawhatchie 467, 0 2 miles West of
Cocsawhaichic

109 QE96 Spring Hill Plantation 1915 Ridgeland CR 426,05 miles North of CR 19

10 G203 Unnamed House e 1500 Ridgzsland LR 381 (Reseland Road), 05 miles
Eronn 5C 452

109 Q327 Ricr - canalfdireh pre-1250 M Ridgeland CR L3, 3B miles North of Rice Shire

N Road

109 0335 Uonmam ed House e 1953 | Coosawhaichic 5C 4682, 0.2 mules Sourh of
inlepecticn in Codatawhaichis

109 0330 Unramed Houze o 192} [ Cootawhaichie S 462, comer in Coctawhachie
kehind Palmeito Coach

L2 0331 Unnamed House e« 1900 D Coeeawharchie 3¢ 452, behind Palmeties Coach

109 0332 Unnamed House . 1920 o Coaeanhatchie S 467, sdjacent to Palmenia Coach

104 0333 Falmerio Coach £ 1930 C Cocsawhatchic ST 482, matn inlersection

109 0334 Coosawhatchic Post Olfks « 1934 %) Cooszwhatchiz &7 447, main inlersecizon

109 0335 Unnamed Heuse £ 1930 o Coosawhatchiz CR 424, 0.1 milss Scanh of Gilmania
Reoad

Lo 0336 Mount Olive Bapnist Thurch e 1eds Coosawhalchic CR 424, comer of Galmanis Road

Loyer Q333 Unnamed House ¢ 1930 o Coosawhachie CH 35, Wesr side, 0.9 mides South of
5C 4482

109 0339 Unoamed Houss e L1540 5] Coosawhalchic CR 39 (Lag Hall Road), East side,
0% miles South of 5C 463

109 0344 Unsianed Houss & 1930 Ridgeland LIS 278, 0.9 mikes South of CR 39

109 0345 Unndmed Heuose e 10 Ridgeland U5 278, near CR 313

0105 d411 Unnamed Heouze o 1930 Ridgeiand US 273, ¢. 1.4 miles Morth of
Ridgeland 1omm line

100 0412 Unnamed House o 1925 (] Ridgelnd CR 19, 035 mites Eaat of 1135

100 0413 Ballery [862 M SC 462, near Bees Creck



109 043000 Turkey Hil Plamation--Main < 1540 &) Cootawharhis Off CR 39, = 1.5 miles south of 3C
Haouse 462
109 043001 Savarmah River Lumber & 1900 < Coosawhaichie QI CR 39, « 2.5 miles south of 5
Company Oihce 452
Furman Cruadrangle
e No. Mame Dage Typee Cinyhie. Lecation
183 0395 Unnamed House c. 1920 D Fiove land CR 17. North side, 03 nuiles Eat of
CR 363
Grays Quadrangle
Site Na. Name Dhare Type Ty Wic. Lecation
203 0377 Unnamed House c 1915 D Grays CR 15 (Pineland Road}, ¢ 0.5 nules
Mortheast of TR 41
03 0378 Danamed House . 825 D Grays Sf 3, 0.3 miles West of junction CR
1
13 0379 Cope House c. LEFS ju) Grays 5C 3, 0.6 miles Norfwest of TR 15
203 350 Oak Grove Bapiist Church o 1900 [, Grays CHR 17, 0.7 miles West of CH 4]
203 03E1 Unnamed House = 10 D Grays CR 17, 05 mites West of CR 41
203 o382 Unnamed House & 1925 D Gaay CTR 409, 02 miles Mosiheast of CR
1
203 0383 Les Smilh Stors e 1910 L Graye Morthwest comer US 278 and 303
203 0384 Cope’s Store e 1930 C Girays Sourheast comer of U5 278 and 3C 3
203 0383 Cleland Hewse « 1915 D G Sourhwest corner of LS 212 and 5C2
203 0386 Unnamed Houwss © 1920 D Girays US 278, 0L mi zouth of 5C 3
203 0394 Langford House & 1920 D Gillscmvalle CR 7%, Southesst comer of CR &7
203 0396 Unoamed House c 1940 D Grays U278, Ll misoathof 5C 3
203 Q397 Pesples Howss o 1520 D Grays US 278, 0.6 mi sowily of BC 3
203 0395 Grays Comoldaied High 1527 M Gy US 278, 0.1 mi north of 53C 3
School
203 0399 Unnamed House & 1035 1] Grays U2 278 0.8 miles Morth of 303
2003 00 Unnamed House c 1923 D ey CR 108, 015 mi north of CR 113
203 (i Unoamed House 1858 D Girays CR 168, 03 miles Soulh of CR 13
203 (e Unnemed House c 1540 D Grays CR 3802 mi cast of CR 138
203 (ait Unnamed House . 1920 D Gy CR 38, 01 mile Wes1 of CR 138
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203 ek {Tnnamed House c. 1990 D Grays CR {11 Wil side, 0.4 miles Narih
of CE 112
203 D410 Unnamed House ¢ 19940 D Orays CR 111, West side, 0.7 miley Norh
o CR 112
203 (420 Unnamed Heouse o 1900 () Grays CR 41 (Beaver Dam Roady, 01 mile
soniheasn of Beaver Dast Craek
203 Da2s Senith Howse o 1R6S (5] Grays S 278, comner of CR 138
Hardesville Ouadeangls
Sile Mo Mame Date Type Ty Vi Lacatien
ZI6 OOLY Purrysburgh Road/Savennah o }740 M Hardetville & 2.7 milss berveen OS5 iracie and
Road CR 24 Fumrysburgh
216 6211 Hardeewille Consolidated 1928 E Hardeewlle Main Stree1
Scho Hardseville Chamber
Cénler
216 D112 Coburn House 5. 1925 D Hardeewile 306 Main Sirect
216 02 Ls Heyward Houss c. 1860 D Hardeewile 110 Man Street
21g T UTnited dMeathodust Chureh = 13450 R Hardeevijls 16 Main Sipect
216 k218 Unnamed House ¢, Lol D Hardeeville GL0Y Main Streel
216 0271 Forrester House e I890 D Hardeevills behind 22 Main Strecl
216 0222 McTeer HousefAlnida's & 1925 n] Hardecvillz Main Street, seoond tuikding cast of
Antiques intarsection witk US17
216 028 T.W. Burroes Realry < 1920 D Hardeeviliz 705 Highway 17
(formeriy)
216 0226 Unnarned House ¢ 1925 D Hardesville 104 Bovd Sirect
21a 27 Arpent Lumber Company. o ¥ I Hardeeville Lawn of Hardeeville Town Hall,
Engine ne. T Mair Streer
216 0229 O Jaal = 1910 M Hardesdlle Dawvis Lane, sel back from Mortheast
corper of US 17 apd 3R 46
214 0231 Unnamed Houwse o 195 Hardeeville behind 127 Sunset Dhive
214 L23Z Unnamed House = 1930 Hardeeville Coburn Street - Thicd houte an kel
{rom Boyd Stecet
216 (233 Unsamed Hoyse c. 1930 D Hardeonllc Cobum Ave, Second house on Left
from Bowd Street
214 0234 Drarnell House o l92s Hardegtille 612 Eaugenia Stidet
216 0235 Unnamed House & 1930 Hardeaville Main Street, gormer gl Columbia
Strect
216 0237 Unnamed Houss < 1920 o Hardeevills Main Streel, between Columbia
Str=el and [95.
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216 0738 D Hutson HewrseWalkh's c 191% D Hardeevillz Highway 48, . 14 mils in mom town
Cash and Carry Tamit.

216 U798 Unoamed Houss € 1525 D Hardeeville 151 Btrect, comer

216 0259 Unoamed House o 1925 L Hardeeville Ist Sereel

216 026D Unnamed House e L5560 [} Hardeeville CR 10, 0.F miles notth of CR 413

216 261 Unnamed Floyse & LY3D o Hardeewille CR 104, 0.5 coriles pouh of CH 413

60262 Unnamed Houge & 1920 D Hardeaviile CR 104, 0.3 miles nonh of 3C 46

216 0283 Unnamed House e 1930 D Hardeeville Main Strecl. comer of RE racks.

2145 0254 Unnamed House < 1930 D Hardeeville Main Street, eme up ot RR racks

206 263 Unnamed Fodse . 1925 1] Hardzeville 03 321, 14 mile Morth of 5C 46

216 U264 Unnamed House e 1925 x] Hardeeville Church Sirset, corner of U5 321,

24 a5y Unnamed House & 1925 D Hardeewille Church Street, sseond house an left
from US 321

216 9269 Uonamed Houge « 1925 o] Hadeevlle Church Street, fpurth house on lelt
from US 321

a5 1272 Unnamed House &« 1920 i) Hardeeyille SR 141, Jahn Sevith Road, cormer of
SR &5

216 (R273.00 Maureee Planiation, Main o. 1930 D Hardeeville O of SF. 44, ¢ 1.7 miles East of the

House . Hardecvilke town line,

216 0TI Manwger's House o 1530 D Hardeovilke $ee ghows

6 027302 Bt o 19750 M Hardecvillc e above

2146027303 Shed 1930 M Hardeeville s abrine

216 027304 Equipment Shed « 1930 M Hardesville sec above

2145 0273.05 Com Crib « 1330 LE Hardeeville see above

216 Q27306 Watker's Houses e 1930 D Hardeeville sae abaone

216 273,07 Smokchrmse « 1930 M Hardeewile s above

214 027308 Garsge ¢ L¥30 M Hardeewille st abowe

216 0571 Unnamed House ¢ 193 i3] Hardeeville lenkins Avenue, Scuthwes side,
serosy from 333 fenkins Avenue,

215 0372 Unnamed House < 1930 D Hardeeville £33 Jenkine Avenus

s 0388 Uanamed House o 1o o Hardesville Underncath US 321 viaduct

216 Q389 Unnamed House & 1930 (o] Hurdeeville coraer of CR 156 and CR 354

216 0390 K=ller Place, Barn . 1930 M Hardeevillz Bahind Matn Sireer, acrossy from St
Siephens Church next w 715 Madn
Sreel

236 039 Unramed House ¢ 1950 D Hardeeville CR 169, 0.5 ciiles Wortheast of CR
M, ol gide



2160414 Charleston and Savannah ¢ 1750 M Hardezwille TR 159
Highway/'Couney Road 160
2160422 Tug wells £ 18207 Hardeenils off CR 34, 0.5 milss south of CR 31
Neoa7 Hagood's Service Station o 1928 L Hardeewlle 13 U3 17 South
Hardeeville W CQuadrengle
Siwe No. Nine Drane Type Citpfvie, Location
2170274 Deer Fark Lodge o 1923 D Tillrsn & 3mi, were of imersestion of LIS 32)
and 5C 243, Westvaen Corp. grounds
TS Winkler Family Cemetery c. 1800 ] Tillman & 3mi. west of intersenion of US 322
and 5C 243, Wiestvaco Comp, grounds
217 0350 Pridge o 1930 M Tillmar SR 119 {Samd Hilks Road]), 125 mi,
Soulheast of R 201
217 0351 Unnated Hoase o 1920 D Tillmar SR 119 {Sand Hills Road), 1.4 mi.
South of CR 277
20T 52 Tom Goethe House o 1520 o Tarbano Savannah RiveriCR 277
Iasper Quadrangle
Hile Mo, Name Bratg Type Ciyvic, Lescation
231 07T Unnamed House c 1910 2 Hardeevills CR 162 Souih side, 0.1 mi. from CR
170
251 7R Lonamed House c 1325 D Hardeeville LIS 278, 01 mi North of pnction with
Us 1o
251 QAT Unnamed House ¢ 1930 i3] Hardeeville 21d Buleys Road. .9 ma, South of SR
170
Lawre| Bay Quadrangle
Sae Na. Mame Dyare Type Ciny v, Loatton
200 (287 Buro ¢ 1910 M Fidgeiand CR 367 {Balen Hall Rd.), Narth side,
2.1 mi from Euhaw Creek
Linebouse Chiadrangle
Sice Mo, Mams Date Type CloyVie Losesation
301 OG22 0 Deelta Flamation, Maa House c 1925 D Hardeeyille CR %2 (Bellinger Hill Road), ¢ 3
miles south of Lavy Station
301 o2zm Union CausewaySerevan 1762 M Hardeoviike see above
FermyRochester Ferry
0301 0022 02 Hardee Cemetery e 1340 M Hardeeville sox above
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01002205 Civil War Fortifiation <. 1363 M Hardeeville st gl

301 0023 Hewse c 1930 ) Hardeeville see abowe

300 002205 Temant Craariery © 1930 D Hardeeville e above

I COEL0s Barn Coxnplex . 1930 | Hardecville sor above

3 022407 Macagers House o 1930 M Harderville see above

301 032 Cavil War Barery o IB&3 M Deanfor: SC 170, Nerth side a1 Mew River

M 3T Lamiter Starc c. 1950 C Hiltoa Head Morth side of SR 170, 0.9 mi. West of
Junciion 3R 170 AN,

310374 Unnamed House o 1520 B Hardeeville CR 92. Wit side. 0.1 miles Scuth of
fancticn with Turmbridge Landing
Road

301 0375 White's Grocery and Gas 1933 c Hardeevills ;.aulhwﬂl: corner of 8C 170 and CR

301 0375 Uanamed House < 1940 D Hardeeville CR 401, (.4 mi. East of US 17

301 433 Unoamed Houss £ 19440 D Hardeeville US L7, 32 miles south of 195

MecPhersonville Guadrangle

Site No. Name Dale Type Ciby e Lacation

329 gant Unnamed House o 1930 p Graye CR. 207, 0.8 mi soucth of CR BT

329 oa2 David Thosas Freeman House o 1868 I Lirzys CR E7, 0.4 miles South of CR 102

319 (M03 Uanamed Heuse 2 1940 D Girays CR 87, 0.7 miles South of CR 108

Fioeland Quadrangte

Sate Mo Mame Date Type Citynee. Lawalesn

00 0002 Robarville Bapewt Church 1948 R Robertyille US 321, junarion with CR 26

4050 0312 Crarbader Siore o %0 C Tarbaro U% 321, across [rom the BF store

400 0313 Gabades House . 120 D Tarbors US 321, behind old Garbades Store

400 0315 Unnamed House o W D Tarboro CR 392, last house on the left

400 Q314 Unnamed House o 1928 D Tarbora CR 171, 0.5 miles Irom U3 321

<400 D518 Unnamed Hoase ¢ 1925 G Rekertviile CR 50, 0.2 milea north of LS 32)

400 D519 Unnamcd House o 1928 o Robertvills CR 50, 0.5 miles north of LIS 321

400 D320 Unnamed Houte c 1933 D Robertville Ben MePheron's Drivewsay,” 0.5
miles east of CR 50

400 2321 Unpamed House < 1920 D Robertille 03 miles south of CR 49 in a field,

0.6 miles west of US 321

74



400 (322 Bascomb Houwss & 190 [ Robermalle CR 15, L5 miles north of SC 462

400 0324 Rufus Folfin House g 193 ) Robertville CR 2%, L8 mibes nonh of 5C 462

00 (355 Unnamed House o 193] > Roberiville 15 321, 0.1 mile Southeast of CR 43

#} 356 Warnpek Howse e 1890 D Robertville inlersection of 3C 442 and US 521

40 0357 Unnamed House = 1550 D Rabertville 5 402, 02 mi. East of jupetion of
Us 321

400 3548 Unnamed House o 1920 D Pinclangd U5 801, 015 miles south of 3C 462

400 03491 Unnamed House < 1930 D Fincland CR §32. between U5 501 and
Ralroad Lracks

400 (363 Unnasned Hoatse ¢, 1530 D FinteJand 5C 852 2 mi. West of US 801

a0 038700 Cypress Creek Flanmionifemie 1275 D Robteerrville LF5 321, o 1.4 mikes Morth of

lves House Tarbata

400 0FR70) Old Augusta Road o J&HD M Roberville e zhove

400 0387.02 Ritter Mill House e 1930 D Robertville et above

400 0387403 Railrozd Bed pre 1920 I Robertville see above

(400 D387 04 Three Sigters Fecry Road o 1620 [ Roberiville tes abxve

00 042%.00 Pineland Clueb 557 D Roberville 035 321, 1.4 miles o of 175 601

400 042901 Cabin ¢ 1858 - Robermville D5 325, 1.4 mriles n of US 601

400 0425907 Cabin c 1850 D Robertville D5 321, 1.4 miles o of LIS 801

Pritchardville Ouadrangte

Fite No. Name Crane Type CinpVic. Location

4L1 DOE200 Red Bluff Plantalion, fam 1940 M Hardeeville Off of CR 193, c. .5 miles cast of
Tumbridge Landing Bd

411 DO82.0] il Waar bantery 1383 M Hardeevilke 3cc abtvne

411 D082 102 House ruing o 1900 D Hardeeville set abome

411 MIBZ.03 Carctakers Cotlage 140 o Hardecvifle S b

411 (9BZ A Tracior shed 1940 M Hardeeville see abowe

411 0OHZ.05 Grain houze 1940 M Hardeeyille e aboye

411 O062.66 Caretaker's ecitage 1940 () Hardeowills OIf of CE 193

Ridgeland Quadrangle
Site Ma, Name Date Type iy, Laoearien
418 0003 Tazper County Courthouse 191% M Ridgeland Rusgell Strect
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423 0004

428 (O0s

425 DO

48 0007

4% (O08

428 D310
428 (11

4IZ 0012

428 0023

428 004

428 0025
428 00245

28 0025

4215 29

428 003

428 (31
428 (03
428 Q033

428 0034

428 0035

438 0026
428 0037
425 X35

418 Qlad

A8 [0}

435 0041

Church of the Hoty Trinity

Jagper 3 & 10

Tnsurinee Serviess

Masonic HallHome Furnshing
Coppany

Western Aulo Associale Store

Unnamed Hogse

Unnarmed structure

CEX Ruleoad Bridge

Jasper Ceunty School Disirt
Qe

Service SLation

Tetperial Tobacco and Candy
Mark's Car Care

Froclors Painl and Bedy Shog

Ridgeland Cleansrs

Stale Highway Deparimenr
Buildine

Unnramed House
Unnaroed House
Ridgeland Motel

Ridgetznd Towm Hall/Caralina
Legal Servioey

Ridgeland Centralued Graded
Schoot

Untnaroed Hess
Unpamed Houose
Melan/Perry House

Elementary SchoalFredee B
Fialt Library

Unnzmed House

Unnamed Houze

1858

c. |45

& 1910

c. 1933

c 1925

c. 1929
o 1805

1540

¢ 1325

& 1910

o 194D

& 1920

< 1¥10

< 1970

o 1910
c. 1910
& 1530

£ 1940

1928

« 1910
¢ 1910
c 1918

c 1928

& 1910

. 19
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m =g v oo m x n oo o X

=2

Ridgeland
Ridgcland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Bidgsland
Bidgeland

Ridzeland

Ridgeland

Ridpelard
Fadaeland
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgcland

Badgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgelaad

Ridgeland

Ridgelznd

Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgelard

comer of CR 29 and CR 13,
Grahamyille

115 South Ralroad Siecet

Main Strect, near somer of Raibcoad
St

Jaosh Smian Boulevard, Scuth of
ttersecuon wath Main Siresr

Main Strest, comer of Jaob Smart
Boulevard

US 278, Worthwest cormer of 3R 13
CR 13, 25 mile South of LS 278

Thied Avenus, twer blocks West of
Jacoly Smart Boulevard

Sevar Boulevard, at micrsection with
Third Avenue

Coener of Smart Bovlevard and dan
Strest

Samart
Corner of Smart and Adams

coiver of Sman Boulevard and
Langferd.

402 Sman Boulevard

Smart Boulevard, Southeast corner of
Wood lawm

409 Sman Boulevard
45 Smart Boulevard
Corner of Smart and Woodlawn

Wiksot Sireet

Wilson Avenre

114 Wikon Avenue
118 Wiboa Avenue
120 Wilson Avenoe

122 Wilson Avente

1046 Logan
101 Logan



425 D047
425 D43
433 00
429 D045

428 Qg

418 et
428 0048
428 Qpag
433 0050
428 0052
428 0053
428 Q54
428 OG5S
425 Q56

428 0057

413 0053
428 005G

418 (0460

428 0061
418 Q02
418 D063
4318 D064
A28 5T
428 (058
425 0063
428 00T

425 D071

428 32

428 DOT3

428 075

M. Woods Hoase

Oy, Witliami B Ryan House

Unnamed Heuse
LUnpamad House

Fleckiey and Benneti
Artorneys

Uzozmed Henise
Urnamed House
Unnamed House
Uninamed House
LUretnamed House
Lonared Hatise
Unnanted House
Unnamed Heuse

Unnamed House

e Iohn P. Wise insurance

Agency
Wise Houss
Unnamed House

Unnamed House

Linnamed Heause
Lonamed House
Unnamed House
Uiinamed House
Unnamed Houss
Unnzned Houge
Unramzd House
Lromamed House

Unnamned House

Uanamed Heouse

Unramed House

Unnamead Houss

<o 1Hs
o« L1905
5. 1920
. 1M5

€ 1920

€ 1915
¢ 1930
c 1900
& 1910
¢ 191
c 1530
e 10
e 1929
e 1930

. 1930

o 1890
. 191%

& 1520

w 1910
% 1915
o L350
e 1915
& 195
c 1920
c 1915
< 1915

. 191

e 1905

o 1o
[ bk

77

2 3 o9 9 o

L e w I = S = N v B v R & B~ I v

L N

ju

(= - N = R = R - H ~ N = R = N v

Ridgetand
Ridgelang
Fidgeland
Ridgeland

Ridgetand

Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgaland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridaelznd
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Ricigeland

Ridgeland
Hidgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeiand
Ridgeland
Ridzelsnd
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Radgeland
Ridgeland

124 Exsi Main Sireei
121 Esst Main Sirect
113 East Main Sireet
112 Easl Main Sireet

110 East Main Sireer

139 East Main Strect
163 East Mo Sircol
105 East Main Sireet
Ryan Strest, saexi side
113 Easi Adamg Street
115 Ezst Adams Street
L1d East Adams Street
119 East Adams Sirest
121 East Adams Strect

125 East Adams Street

128 Easr Adams Stras(
131 East Adams Sireq

Logan Streer, berween East Adams
il East Main

108 Logan Siccet

10 Logan Sireat

behind 128 Eaxsa Main

107 Smith Streat

X0 Logan Street

Legan SareeL, comer of Wilkkon Sireet
304 Logan Street

Logmm Strect

CR 35 between Logan Streer and US
17

CR 77 (Capt. Bili Road), 14 mile
from U5 17

CR 2% comer of Wall Street

Logan Sircct sxtension



q23 56

418 (7T

428 Q7R

428 0%

428 Q083

428 0084

428 DO8S
42E O00ES

428 ans?

425 O0E2

428 O06%
428 Q0D
426 0093

428 0094

428 0035
428 000G

428 0007

478 DO9R
425 pnon
428 0100

425 0101

428 0102
425 0103
428 014
428 0105
425 01046
425 Q106

428 0110

Usnnamed Houce

Unnamed House

Linnamed House

Unnamed House

Efnnamed House

Ashley's Beaury Salon

Perry building

Unnamed House

Tillman Brothers Construction

Unnamed Housr

Unnmamed Houss

Unnamed Houss

Unnamed Hoxse

Hempinal/Ridge Points

ApArirEnis
Tograham Hease
Unnatied Heouze

Unoamed House

Unnamed House
Unnamed House
Unnzmed House

Unaamed House

Creomge Lomg Housse

Unniemed House

Uniizmed Houte

Uanamed Houss

Unnamed Houss

Urnamed Howse

Unnamed Houss

c. 1930

€ 1910

. 12

o 1935

¢ 1925

c. 1950

c. 1910
e 915

o 141

o 1925

e 1540
© 15925
o 1920

154

c 1925
€. 1920

€. 1929

1910
o yoad
¢ 1918

¢ 1930

. LERS
a 1900
e 1900
< 1870
© 154
. 1510

c 193
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Ridegeland

Ridgeland

Fidgeiand

Ridgeiand
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridg:land
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Ridzeland

Ridzelind
Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Rideeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeiand

Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Lagan Sireel extension

Easy Adamz Sireet, first oo fghl sast
of Logan Sareel

304 EasL Adamy, 2nd o right cast of
Logan Street

7 East Adams Street

Selltrarest comer of West Main and
Green Stresls

Soqihcan comer of West Main Sueet
and Green Strest

201207 West Main Siresl
309 West M Stresl

West Main Strect. scuthwest cormer
of Perry Street

Brabharn Sereet, one block norih of
Wt Main Stresl

107 Brabham Sireet
120 North Ralrozd Streel
113 Green Sereat

107-308 Cireeg Stredt

20! Green Strect
202 Green Sdreat

Graen Streel, northocst cormer of
Third Avenue

107 Third Avenne
105 Third Avenue
108 Thard Avenus

Third Avenus, sorthesst corner of
Green Sireel

Ext1 Langiord Streag
411 Thind Avenue
408 Third Avenize
404 Third Awenue
H2 Third Avenue
301 Founh Avenus

208 Floyd Sireet



428 D1L) Unnamed House . 170 o Riggeland 405 Main Sireet

SRRk Unnamed Houss ¢ 1913 D Ridgeland 405 First Avenue

428 0114 Unnamed Houss o 195 o Ridgeland 505 First Avenue

425 0115 Unsamed Houss o 19y D Ridgeland 603 First Avenpue

418 0114 Unnamed House c 1910 D Radgeland 50% FirsL Avenue

428 G1LT Rudzeland Jail e 1918 M Ridgeland Firtt Aveme, southwest cormer of
Tasper Street

423 9120 Unnamed House . 1315 o Ridgeland M08 Second Avenue

a3glzz Unoamead House ¢ 195 (W Ridgeland Second Avenue, cormer of Jasper
Streer

423 0123 Unnamed Heuse ¢ 1928 [+ Fidgeland 510 Secrmd Awcnine

428 0124 Unnamed House &« 1935 o Ridgeland 50¢ Second Avenue

426 0TS Unnamed House o 1935 8] Ridgeland Hd Second Avenue

4268 Q126 Unnzmed Heuse © 1935 D Ridgetand 302 Sacond Avenue

428 Q137 MeoCormick House o 1900 D Ridgeland Secvind Avenve, northeatt commer of
Flovd Sireet

428 QE28 Unnamed House < 1930 I Rudgeland 404 (4347 Second Ao

428 Q124 Unnamed House ¢ L9¥25 D Rudzelxnd 2 Second Avenue

428 013 Unnamed House & |9 B Ridgeland 403 Rustell Sireet

428 013 LUnnamed Houss « 1915 D Ridgetand T2 Grays Highony

428 01346 Unnamed House o [925 D Ridgeland 702 Third Avenue

428 (143 Unnamed Houge & 1920 D Ridgeland 310 Second Avenue

438 D144 Unnamed Heuse o 1920 I Ridgeland 305 Second Avenue

428 04f Unnamed House €. 193] D Ridgeland 801 Sexond Avenus

418 7146 Rivers and Pudgen Law e 1925 i) Ridgeland 3 Bussell Sirect

OHfices

425 0147 Beech House c. 1915 o Ridgeland 202 Ruseell Sireet

423 0148 Unnamed House € 1928 C Ridgeland 201 Bussell Sirect

428 0149 Zahlor House £ 1910 [ Ridgeland 107 Russcll Sireet

428 G150 Unnxmed Housc & 1915 ] Bidgeland 20 Tasper Street

428 0151 Unnamed House & 1920 ] Ridgelard 813 Fint Avenue

428 0153 Unozmed Hoose 193 ] Ridgeland Eld FirsL Avenus

428 Q155 Unoarmed House & 1915 o Ridgeland 114 West Adams

428 0156 Urnamed House ¢ 1930 &} Ridgeland :ad;“'trmd Srreet, cormer of West
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428 Q158 C.E Perry, 5r., House/Sauls’ 1900 o Ridge land S0 West Adarhs Streer
Funeral Home

428 Q15% Bl. Perry House 1913 D Ridgeland 500 Wert Adams Srasr

ALE 0160 Unoamed Hourse o 1915 D Fidgeland 703 Weat Main Strec:

428 0161 LUranamed Houss ¢ 1930 D Radgeland 06 West Main Street

428 Q162 Unpamed Hoas= c 1925 D Fidgeland 507 Weat Main Street

478 Q164 Unnamed House & 1935 D Fdaeland 113 Church Sircel

425 Q163 Unnamed House « 193] D Ridgeland 1 Weat Adams Strect

428 Q166 Unnamed House « 1920 D Ridgeland 107 Sister Ferry Road

428 0168 Unnamed House c 191% D Ridgeland Wesl side of Perry Sirect, nenl 10 the
Pent Office

425 QLG9 Unoamed House o 1925 D Ridgeland 301 Green Street

425 QLT Unnamed Houss 1930 D Ridgeland 307 Gregn Shreel

428 00T1 Unnamed Hoase o 1925 D Ridgelind 312 Green

428 0172 Unnamed Hoose o 193G n} Ridgelznd 313 Green

426 Q173 Unnamed House o 1930 D Ridgeland 306 Green Stres

225 0174 Unnamed House « 1923 D Ridgeland Smith Street

£28 QLT3 Nacla Whiliams Realty < 10d5 D Ridgeland Smith Street

42 0174 Bowden and Company e 1935 D Ridgeland Smizh Sireet

428 0177 Unnamed House c 1725 D Ridgeland 107 Malphrus Srreet

428 0179 Unoamed Houss S -rL D Hidgeland 111 Malphrus Street

425 01580 Unoamed Housz €« 1735 D Ridyeland 519 Gireen Siroct

428 0161 Unnamed House c 1H3 o Ridgeland behind 601 Graen Street

428 0132 Uanamed House c 1925 o Ridgetand T Green Steeet

418 0183 Unnamed House €. 1925 it Ridgeland &9 Groen Strect

425 4184 Unnamed House = 197 D Ridgeland 111 West Wondlawm Avenue

478 0185 Unnamed Houise & IS i) Rxdzeland 106 Wezl Woodlamm Avenis

a8 0134 Unnamed House e 1925 D Ridgrland 108 Wes1 Langlowed Strect

428 0187 Farris House o 1870 o Ridgeiand 21 Sourh Green Street

428 0188 Uninamed House e 1825 D Radgeland 4 Caner's Mill Road

a5 01%l Unnamed House ¢ 1920 D Ridgeland A10 West Main Sreet

418 0192 Unnamed House e 175 D Ridgrland BO% West Main Street

418 0193 Unnamed House = 1933 p Ridgeland BT West Main Sireet
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478 DIT4
428 (19
428 0137
428 0193
A28 0199

428 200

4318 0201

418 0202

423 0233

428 204

418 (205

435 26

413 123

428 (224

428 s
428 0254
428 Q155
423 0255

£18 0257.00

418 L5701
418 257.02
HEEm
428 25704
428 15705
428 (23706
428 (25707

428 (257.04

Unnamed House
Unnamed Houwse
Unnaned Hewse
Urnnamed House
Unnamed Houss

Unnamed Housc

Unnamed House

Uenamed House

Unpamed Houte

Unnamed House

Unramed Houss

Unnamed Houss

White Hall

Unnaned House

Enhaw Baproe Cherch
Unnamed House
Unnamed Heuse
Unnamed House
Chelsea Plantarion, Main
House

Garage

Barm

Equipment Shed

Woand Shed

Honse

House

Purop House

House

e 192
e 1920
e 1920
& 1930

& 193)

1925

& 193]

& 1920

¢ 1930

o 1900

« 1520

c. 1750

L 1920

1906
¢ 1925
c. 1925

1925

© 1937

€ 1937
€ 1937
e 1937
o 1937
[ 1)
. 1937
& 1937

& 1937
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Radgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Girahamyhlle

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeiand

Ridgeland

Ridgeland

Ridgetand
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

Ridgaland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgchand
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland

BOS Wesl Mam Soree
BOL West Main Sirest
210 East Main Sireel
206 East Main Street
Comer of U5 275 and CR 13

U5 278 East. 111h huilding oa left
from |95

Box 340 U5 278 East, Oth building on
feft from I-BS

IS 278 East, Tth buikding on the lefi
from -85

VS 276 East, &ih huilding on lefl
{rom [-9F

CR 13, corner of US 278

CR 13, &1 on. Scarth of US 278 Wesi
from Bidgetand

TR 13 between US 278 and CR 77,
Marth side

. | miTe east of 5C $52, narth of OXd
House intersaction

& 4852 o 1,7 mile West of comer al
276, Al entraoee o White Hall,

CR 13, 0.2 miiles south of CR 29
CR 139, 03 mi. West of CR 13
CR 139, 0.4 mi. West of TR 13

CR 139, =& back from corner of CR
13

{HT CR 54, north side
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ser ghwowe
S abowe
soe abowve
set above
see abowe

e aboue



423 0F5T.00
428 0FST 1S
428 025711
418 035712

428 0271

4130079

428 280

428 7183

418 (8%

428 0284
428 Q2BT

428 0283

415 Q289

428 (7290

438 QFI600

418 032801
428 G382
418 032803
420 032804
428 032805
428 032806
426 a328107
428 032508
428 03285009

$28 0342

428 0343

428 (365

418 D36t

Tenam House
House
Houss
Howrse

D&M Plantaiion

Unnamed House

Unnamed Houss

Unnamed Rouse

Unnared Houss

Unnamed House
Unnamed House

Uonamed Heowse

Unnarmed Howss

Unnamed Houss

Giisd Hops Plantation, Main
House

Dinimg'Guest House
Managers Mouse
Dog Trainers House
Guest/Residence
Deg Kennels
Siables

Garage

Shed

Shed

Unnamed Housze

Unnamed Houss

Unnamed House

Unnamed Fouss

« 19577
c 1937
. 1937
o |90

o 1800

g
€. 1930

e 193

L

. 1930

c 1770
c. 10F)

& 1930

o. Jas

o 1925

o Jodd

pre 1910
. 1914
£ 1910
o 1935
« 1930
o 1838
o 1939
- o)
¢ 193

c 193

= 1935

¢ 1930

c 1930
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B idgeland
Ridpeland
Rideeland
Ridgeland

FRidgeland

Rupelind

Ridgefand

Rideeland

Ridgeland

Ridgeland
Rideciand

Ridgeiand

Ridgeland

Old House

Ridgelsad

Ridgzland
Ridgeiznd
Ridgelind
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Ridgeland
Rizelard
Ridgeland
Ridgeiand

Rsdgeland

Ridgrtand

Fidgeland

Ridgeland

taz above
soe abowe
tee above
sec abowve

U3 278, 0.8 somb of Old House
intersection

L% I8, West side 0.4 mi. North of
CR 54

CR 387 (Bolen Hall Road}, corner of
CR 385

CR 331, near camer of CR 385

CR 331, 0.7 mi. West of carner of
CR 31%

U5 278, 0.7 miles north of CH 54
U5 278 a1 junciion with LS 278

118 278 Marih side, 0.2 mi. East of
fanction with US 276

U5 278 . 007 moi. East of junction
wilth 278

US 278 Wett al unciion with 30 462

UE 278, 1.7 miles northeest of 50
482

zer ahomes
SeE abe
dec aberve
see abirve
see abovye
sec above
sze above
50t above
see above

US 278, 025 mi North of Ridgetand
Loem limil

US 278 035 mi North of Ridgeland
voem limils

Junctiom of US 178 and CR 29

CR 13 spur



438 0353 Unnamed Heuse « 1930 D Ridgeland CR2I0 G& mi. Eastof US 1T
428 36 Unnamed House o 191 D Ridgeland CR 162 c. 27 mi swai CR 417
428 419 Honey Hill Baitery 1862 ] Ridgeiand UZ 278, . 2 miles Eaat of CR 13
428 D424 Coca Cola Baitling Plant c [g4D C Ridgeland 605 Smart Bouloard
478 28 Sauls' Funcral Home c. 1940 C Ridgeland Smart Bhvd, West side 2nd house
Horth of Main
428 (432 Linnam e House €. 1930 B Ridgeland GOF Wesl Main Strest
Rincon Cuadranglc
Sine Ma. Name Drane Type CinpVie Lescation
431 f431 Arsgent Raiiroad Pilings < 1928 1 Hardesville Savannah River, at oorth end of
Coleman Lake
Sheldon Cuadrangle
Sie Mo, Name Dame Typc City'Vic. Location
470 D41% Chwvil War Battery 1362 M Fosine Scath Franilin Creek a1 CR, 33, « 2 miles
souih of US17
270 Gd16 Civil War Bartery 13462 M Podnt Soetib Mackeys Foint Plantation, sxeensica
af CR 33
478 0417 Mackeys Plantation, Managers & 1920 D Peint Souch sac shvove
House
Tillman Quadrang|e
Sine M. Name Date Type CiteVice. Location
513 0009 Southern Railway Roadbed o 188 M Tillman Along LIS 321, 1.0 mi Seurh of
Tillman, at eremsrgads with Floyd
Road
3130021 Tilkman Consolidaled School c 1320 E Tillman Us 321, 025 mi. Wornh of 58 336
513 0204 Ritter Company drying kiln c 1932 [ Tilluan 035 mites west of US 321, 1 mile
solth of 5O 330 intersectian
513095 Connilfe Hexise & 1TM D Tilkman CR 103, 0.1 mi. Easi of 15 321
F13 029 Mot Homse c 1920 I Tillman UI5 321, 02 mi Manh of 336
J13da%E Unnamed House & 1920 ] Tillman SC 336, corner of Railroad Avenue
313 0209 Unnamed Houss . 1930 o Tillman Corner of CR 103
513 0300 LUonamed Houge . 1925 C Tillman Railroad Avenue, 0.3 miles South of
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513 0300 Unnamed Houss o 1979 Tillrran Raslroad Avenee, 0.2 mi. from SC
336

513 0362 Unnamed Heouss ¢ 1920 Tillman SC 334, 03, Bxst of US 321

513 0303 Uonamed Houss c. 1930 Tilman-Ridgeland  SC 336, 0.4 mi wezg of CR 29

S0 Fleming House &, 190 Tilkman 5C 336, 0.1 mi. West of Wagon
Branch Creck

513 G308 Unnamed House & 1920 Tiltman-Ridgeland  CR 243 {Wagon Branch Road). 25
ke Morih of Broad River Creck

130308 Unnamead Howse o 19358 Tillman BC 338, 0.7 mi east of US 321, next
o Full Gospel Church

513 0307 Unnamed House o 1920 Tilnan S0 336, LA rmles WesL ol CR 11D

513 0308 Unnamed Houzs o [920 Tilkman 5C 336, 1.4 mi cast of US 321, next
o Saim Marthew Church

213 0309 Unnamed House £ 1930 Tilkman CR 116 (Great Soamp Road), 1.1
mite Nonh of 5C 336

13 0310 Ubramed Houss L R Ridgeland CR L6 (Great Swamp Read)y, (06
mibes Horth of CR 14

5130326 Uanamead Houss g, 1930 Tillman Comer of U8 32 and CR 397

513 0346 Donamed Houss o 1925 Tillman CR Td3, Noah side, 0.5 mi. Wes1 TS
32t

513 0347 Doctor's offe e 1934 ‘Tilkman Sowthanzt comer of US 32 and CR
119

513 G34R Uonamed House c. 1A Tillmean CR 119, Sand Hills Poad, 0.5 mi.
West of 1S 321

513 0349 Unnamed Houss o 1910 Tillman CR 119, 0.7 mi. West of US 3N

513 36 Unnamad House & 1920 Ridgeiand CR 43 {Caner's Mill Road). 0.5 miles
nof OF 29

513 0347 Unnamed House . 1930 Saizerland s 17

Yemassee Cuadrangls
Sl No. MName Craxe Ty, Lexation
562 0413 Framton House « 1910 Poaal Socnh US L7, exst tide

Male: Type denotes historic use, sooording to the foflowing key:

C Comntersif

I Domestic (Rexidential}
E: Educalional

[: Indusirial

M Miscellaneous

R Religious



i5. Recommendations

Jasper County has seen relatively little development, particularly by comparison to
its neighbor, Beaufort County. This is due in large part to the processes of historical
development outlined ia Section 9 abave, especially the pattern of large landhoiding that
extends from the mid eighteenth century to the present. The paucity of antebellum
buildings as a result of plantatica ownership means favorable conditions for large timber and
recreation tracts in the late nineteenth and twentieth centuries.

Changes are clearly on the horizen, hewever. The accelerated pace of development
in neighboring Beaufort County will soon have repercussions in Jasper County. The Del
Web/Sun City project, now under consttuction, will begin extending pressures for wider
roads and new buildings in Jasper County within the next several years. The areas with
more direct access to Beaufort County, particularly along the corridors formed by US 278,
CR 41, and SC 170, will see special pressures. In addition, the intersecting corridors of SC
462 south from Coosawhatchie and US 278 extending out from Ridgeland will likely see
increased development pressures.

The principal potentizl threat to cultural resources comes from proposed housing
developments. Jasper County possesses many beautiful areas with ready access to water,
either marshes or nvers. The eastern part of the county, along the rvers forming
boundaries with Beaufort County, are rich in such sites. Already there is a new housing
development in process of construction along Knowles Island Read, oo Boyd's Creek in
eastern Jasper County. New and wider roads will give vesidents in this and other future
subdivisions easy access both to Beaufort and to Savannah.

The inventory of standing structures presented in this report should be consulted in
future planning activities,. The survey forms, when used in conjunction with the maps
provided with this report, and the historical overview presented abowve, should give a2 degree
of puidance as tc the potential impact of proposed developments on above-ground cultural
resources. It must be born in mind, however, that not all cuitural resources are above

ground,

Compared to some of its neighboring counties, Jasper County has received relatively
few concentrated archaeological investigations. This has much to do with the relatively
slower pace of development, though this is likely to change in the pear future.
Archaeoclogical sites are, however, important aspects of the County’s cultural heritage, and
ment protection and consideration equal to that given to standing structures. This report
is not intended to provide full documentation on archacological sites with no above-ground
features. However, archaeoclogical sites must also be taken into consideration in Jasper
Counnty's future planning activities.

The buik of the archaeological sites which have been identified to date in Jasper
County have been in the region between Hardeeville and the Savannah River. This accords
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with what can be expected as the most likely places to find archaeological deposits. In
general, both high ground and swamps near the rivers, particularly the tidal rvers, wiil bave
a high potential for archaeological resources. Clearly, however, while few archasological
surveys have been conducted in other areas, similar conditions exist along the, New, Wright,
Cossawhatchie, Pocotalige, and Coosawhatchie rivers; Bees, Boyds, Coles, Hazard's creeks
in the eastern part of the County, and Cypress and Union creeks in the western portion.
Relatively kigh land with ready access to water are prime settlement locations, both for
prehistoric humans and more modern ones. While development pressures do not now seem
as intense in the northern portions of the County, there are [ocales in the Gillisonville,
Pineland, and Grays areas which contain a high potential for prehistoric archaeclogical
resoutces, particularly higher areas along the many smalf drainages which cut across the
fand.

The County also contains areas with potential for histaric archaeological resources.
Several of the sites already noted in this survey will likely yield historic artifacts. OQther
areas have not been defined during this survey. Many of the historic maps and plats
indicated in the biblicgraphy for this report can be consulted to provide guidance as to
locales which will likely contain historic archaeotogical resources; indications of houses,
barns, mills, and other structures on these maps will point to sites with a high potential for
histotic archaeological rescurces.
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APPENDIX A

DISTRIBUTION OF SITES BY USGS QUADRANGLE MAPS



USGS Quadrangle Name Code Total Sites Total

Resources
Brighton 056 I !
Calfpen Bay (068 7 15
Coosawhatchiz 108 22 P
Furman 183 1 |
Crays 2am 23 A
Hardeeville 216 41 4%
Hardeevile NW 217 3 ]
Jasper 51 3 3
Laure! Bay 250 1 1
Limehouse 301 7 14
McPherzonville 329 3 3
Pineland 400 19 25
Pritchardville 411 i 7
Ridgelaond 428 186 207
Rincon 431 1 1
Sheldon 470 3 3
Tillman 513 24 25
Yemassee 569 1 1

Totals 350 407



APPENDIX B

DATE RANGES OF HISTORIC SITES IN JASPER COUNTY



Date Ranges of Historic Sites in Jasper County:

Date Range Number Fercent
of Sites
pre-18(4 5 1.2
13060 - 1860 16 19
1861 - 1389 17 42
1890 - 1914 35 135
1515 - 1924 98 241
1925 - 1934 159 301
1935 - 1945 37 144
Total 407 1N



APPENDIX C

TYPES OF HISTORIC SITES IN JASPER COUNTY



Types of Historic Sites i Jasper County

Site Type Number Percent
Single family residence 286 703
Commercial buddmgs 17 3.2
Bams and sheds 16 3.9
Shacks' 10 2.4
Tenant bouses/quarters B 2.0
Churches 7 1.7
Civil War Batteries 7 1.7
Schoals and education boidings 6 L5
Roads and causeways 5 1.2
Multiple family residences’ 1 1.2
Garages 4 1.0
Slave buildings 4 1.0
Service stations 3 0.7
Baiircad beds 3 Q.7
Warehouses 2 05
Bridges 2 05
Stables 2 05
Dog kenpels 2 05
Rice works z 0.5
Jais 2 0.5
Cemeteries 2 05
Folitical buildmgs 2 05
Ruins 2 0.5
Miscellaneous’ 2 20

Totals 47 1000



Motes:

1. Shacks medede all one-room baildings which conld not be otherwise identified

2. Muliipie family residences @ this list refer primarily 1o buildings on plantations whick were ot
designed to house the varicus owners who might be in rasidence at a given time; these buiidings
were primiarly for plantation employess.

3. The "Miscellancous” category inciudes al] buildings and sites which have only one
representative; these include a motel, a public courthouse square, a pump house, a drying kiln, a
temparary doctor's office, a well, a post office, and a lumber railroad steam engine



